
The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Regular Board Meeting

AGENDA

Monday, June 21, 2021, 7:30 p.m.
Broadcasted via YouTube

https://bit.ly/3czx8bA

Pages

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING

This meeting is being audio and video recorded. The video can be viewed on
the District website.

A.1. Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories

The Greater Victoria School District wishes to recognize and
acknowledge the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose traditional
territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work.

A.2. Approval of the Agenda

Recommended Motion:
That the June 21, 2021 agenda be approved.

A.3. Approval of the Minutes

a. Approval of the May 17, 2021 Regular Board Minutes 11

Recommended Motion:
That the May 17, 2021 Regular Board Minutes be approved.

b. Approval of the May 25, 2021 Special Board Budget Minutes 26

Recommended Motion:
That the May 25, 2021 Special Board Budget minutes be
approved.

VIA ZOOM



c. Approval of the May 28, 2021 Special Board Minutes 28

Recommended Motion:
That the May 28, 2021 Special Board meeting minutes be
approved.

d. Approval of the June 10, 2021 Special Board Minutes 32

Recommended Motion:
That the June 10, 2021 Special Board minutes be approved.

A.4. Business Arising from the Minutes

A.5. Student Achievement

A.6. District Presentations

A.7. Community Presentations

(5 minutes per presentation)

a. Jack Meredith, Dogwood, Climate Action 38

b. Talia Collins, SD61 Student, Climate Action

c. Devon Oneschuk, SD61 Student, Climate Action

d. Ester Callo, Burnside Report

B. CORRESPONDENCE

B.1. May 28, 2021, Joint Letter - Songhees and Esquimalt Nations 44

B.2. Budget Correspondence - 2021-2022 Budget 46

B.3. May 21 2021, GVTA to SD61, Development of a Plan to Address Racism
and Colonialism

184

Page 2 of 308



B.4. June 7, 2021, Lisa Helps, Victoria Mayor, Bank Street School Building -
Proposed Partnership

186

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
direct Staff  to meet with City of Victoria Staff to explore potential options
that may permit the restoration of the Bank Street School building as
requested by Mayor Helps in the City of Victoria’s June 7, 2021 letter to
the Board;

AND FURTHER

That any meetings occur after School District No. 61 receives its Class C
cost estimate of Bank Street School.

B.5. Climate Emergency Action Plan Correspondence 187

C. TRUSTEE REPORTS

C.1. Chair's Report 219

C.2. Trustees' Reports

(2 minutes per verbal presentation)
D. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

D.1. Education Policy and Directions Committee

a. Draft minutes from the June 7, 2021 meeting - Information only 222

b. Recommended motions from the June 7, 2021 meeting

a. School Police Liaison Officer Ad Hoc Committee -
Trustee Duncan

227

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61
(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to
allocate a budget of $5,000.00 to assist the School
Police Liaison Ad Hoc Committee to complete its
work.

Page 3 of 308

a. Trustee McNally



b. New Accessible British Columbia Act - Trustee
Painter

230

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No.61
(Greater Victoria) send a letter to the Parliamentary
Secretary for Accessibility (MLA Dan Coulter) and
local MLAs requesting that people and children with
dyslexia/learning and communication disability
designations be included in the new Accessible
British Columbia Act, which has not yet received final
reading.

D.2. Operations Policy and Planning Committee

a. Draft minutes from the June 14, 2021 meeting - Information only 233

b. Recommended motions from the June 14, 2021 meeting

a. Recycling Soft Plastic

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61
(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to re-
establish green teams in every school who will work
with facilities to create a process where the green
teams categorize and weigh soft plastics once a
week. This information will be collected by Mark
Baggott in facilities and recommendations will be
made in the spring of 2021-2022 on how to reduce
waste of soft plastics.

b. Working Committee and Consultation on Compost
and Waste - Trustee Whiteaker

240

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61
(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to
oversee the creation of a Working Committee and
consultation process, as outlined in Bylaw 9210, to
prepare a draft Compost and Waste policy proposal
which is in alignment with our environmental values
and goals.

Page 4 of 308



c. Climate Action Plan - Trustee Duncan 241

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61
(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to
prepare a Climate Action Plan as directed by the
Board in its motion of 24 June 2019, by December
2021 for consideration by the Board and our
stakeholders.

E. DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS

E.1. Superintendent's Report

a. Monthly Report 244

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) receive the Superintendent's report as presented.

b. 2021-2022 Board of Education and Standing Committee
Meeting Dates

247

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve the 2021-2022 Board of Education and
Standing Committee meeting dates.

c. Trustee Questions

E.2. Secretary-Treasurer's Report

a. Monthly Report 248

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) receive the Secretary- Treasurer's report as presented.

Page 5 of 308



b. Caledonia Covenant, Right-of-Way, Land Exchange, Property 250
Acquisition and Lease Bylaw 2021

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved as a Bylaw of the Board 
attached on page 250 of the June 21, 2021 Regular Open 
Board meeting, that the Master Agreement and the 
Transactions be and are hereby authorized, ratified and 
approved.

BE IT FURTHER resolved that the Secretary-Treasurer be and 
is hereby authorized on behalf of the Board to execute and 
deliver the Master Agreement and all documents required to 
complete the Transactions including, without limitation, the 
Housing Agreement, the Greenway Covenant, the Gardens 
Covenant, the Turnaround Covenant, the Unit Mix and 
Accessibility Covenant, the Vining Highway SRW, the Grant 
Highway SRW, the Greenway SRW, the Land Exchange 
Agreement, the Purchase Contract, the Proposed Consolidation 
Plan, the License and the Lease, and all such amendments 
thereto as the Secretary-Treasurer may, in her discretion, 
consider advisable, and all related and ancillary documents 
required to complete the Transactions.

This Bylaw may be cited as “School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) Caledonia Covenant, Right-of-Way, Land Exchange, 
Property Acquisition and Lease Bylaw 2021”.

Read a first time this    day of June, 2021.

Read a second time this    day of June, 2021.

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) agree to give all three readings of School District No. 
61 (Greater Victoria) Caledonia Covenant, Right-of-Way, Land 
Exchange, Property Acquisition and Lease Bylaw 2021 at the 
June   , 2021 Board Meeting. (must pass unanimously)

Read a third time this    day of June, 2021, and finally passed 
and adopted this    day of June, 2021.

Page 6 of 308



c. 2022/2023 Five Year Capital Plan 261

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve for submission to the Ministry of Education,
the 2022/2023 Greater Victoria School District No. 61 Five Year
Capital Plan.

d. Audit Planning Report 2020-2021 275

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve the Audit Planning Report for 2020-2021 as
presented by KPMG to the Audit Committee.

e. Purchasing Zero Emission Buses 297

Recommended Motion:
WHEREAS:
The Board is purchasing four electric buses;
The Board will reduce and/or eliminate the need for bussing
contractors once the electric buses are in place;
The Board will recognize $44,000 to $48,000 operating savings
per year by using electric buses and reducing/eliminating
bussing contractors, once the buses are in place;
The funding to capital cost delta for the four buses is $194,708,
BE IT RESOLVED
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) finance the 2021-2022 $194,708 delta utilizating
Method 4: Finance over a period of time with the Canadian
Infrastructure Bank and Association of School Transportation
Services of BC credit facility, as presented;
AND FURTHER
That the Secretary-Treasurer be directed to seek permission
from the Minister of Education to borrow;
AND FURTHER
That the Secretary-Treasurer be directed to bring a capital
bylaw for three readings relative to the borrowing, to a future
Board meeting.

Page 7 of 308



f. Capital Bylaw No 2021/22-CPSD61-01 302

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2021/22-CPSD61-01
CAPITAL PLAN 2021/22
WHEREAS in accordance with section 142 of the School Act,
the Board of Education of School District
No. 61 (Greater Victoria) (hereinafter called the “Board”) has
submitted a capital plan to the Minister of
Education (hereinafter called the "Minister") and the Minister
has approved the capital plan or has
approved a capital plan with modifications,
NOW THEREFORE in accordance with section 143 of the
School Act, the Board has prepared this
Capital Bylaw and agrees to do the following:
(a) Authorize the Secretary-Treasurer to execute a capital
project funding agreement(s) related to the
capital project(s) contemplated by the capital plan or the capital
plan with modifications;
(b) Upon ministerial approval to proceed, commence the capital
project(s) and proceed diligently
and use its best efforts to complete each capital project
substantially as directed by the Minister;
(c) Observe and comply with any order, regulation, or policy of
the Minister as may be applicable to
the Board or the capital project(s); and,
(d) Maintain proper books of account, and other information and
documents with respect to the
affairs of the capital project(s), as may be prescribed by the
Minister.
NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows:
1. The Capital Bylaw of the Board for the 2021/22 Capital Plan
as approved by the Minister, to
include the supported capital project(s) specified in the letter
addressed to the Secretary-
Treasurer and Superintendent, dated June 21, 2021, is hereby
adopted.
2. This Capital Bylaw may be cited as School District No. 61
(Greater Victoria) Capital Bylaw
No.2021/22-CPSD61-01.

Read a first time this    day of June, 2021.

Page 8 of 308



Read a second time this    day of June, 2021.

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) agree to give all three readings of School District No.
61 (Greater Victoria) CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2021/22-CPSD61-
01 at the June   , 2021 Board Meeting. (must pass
unanimously) 

Read a third time this    day of June, 2021, and finally passed 
and adopted the    day of June, 2021.

F. QUESTION PERIOD

(15 minutes total)

G. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS

G.1. Record of In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - May 17, 2020 307

G.2. Record of In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - June 10, 2021 308

G.3. Victoria High School Construction Schedule

The revised Victoria High School Seismic Upgrade and Expansion
project completion date is changed from September 2022 to September
2023.

G.4. Conclusion of Trustee McNally Sanction

H. NEW BUSINESS/NOTICE OF MOTIONS

H.1. New Business

a. Needs Budget and Advocacy Letter - Trustee Whiteaker

H.2. Notice of Motions

a. Trustee McNally

For September Operations Policy and Planning Standing
Committee

Page 9 of 308



Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) strike an Ad Hoc Committee as per Bylaw 9140 Ad
Hoc Committee of the Board, to:
a) examine and consider possibilities for restructuring Tolmie-
based management,
b) consider ways to more effectively provide Tolmie-based
services by reducing overlaps in services and expenses,
c) examine job descriptions, roles and responsibilities of District
Principals and determine how these resources and services
might be offered in a more cost- effective manner, and
d) that  Terms of Reference be developed by senior
administration as per Bylaw, after soliciting input from
representatives of all partner groups and the 4 Houses, TOR to
be presented to the Board at the September Operations Policy
and Planning Standing Committee meeting.

I. ADJOURNMENT

Recommended Motion:
That the meeting be adjourned.

Page 10 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 1 

 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

MINUTES 

 

May 17, 2021, 7:30 p.m. 

 

Trustees Present: Jordan Watters, Board Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole 

Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze , Diane McNally, Ryan 

Painter, Rob Paynter, Ann Whiteaker (left meeting at 10:59 p.m.) 

  

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Chuck Morris, Director, Facilities Services, 

Andy Canty, Director, Information Technology for Learning, Lisa 

McPhail, Communications and Community Engagement 

Manager , Vicki Hanley, Recorder 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING  

The meeting was called to order at 7:38 p.m. 

A.1 Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees 

Nations, on whose traditional territories, we live, we learn, and we do our 

work. 

Chair Watters announced the postponement of Special Budget meeting 

until further notice. 

A.2 Approval of the Agenda  

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Seconded by Trustee Paynter 

That the May 17, 2021 agenda be amended as follows: 

Page 11 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 2 

Move C.1.a Chair's Report to H.1. New Business. 

For (5): Trustee Duncan, Trustee Ferris, Trustee McNally, Trustee 

Paynter, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (4): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Hentze, and 

Trustee Painter 

Motion Carried (5 to 4) 

 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Seconded by Trustee Paynter 

That the May 17, 2021 agenda be amended to add the following: 

H.1 New Business 

H.1.b Trustee McNally - Rollover Budget  

  

For (8): Trustee Watters, Trustee Duncan, Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, 

Trustee McNally, Trustee Painter, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Against (1): Trustee Leonard 

Motion Carried (8 to 1) 

 

By consensus the May 17, 2021 agenda be approved with the following 

addition: 

C.2 Trustee Reports 

C.2.b Trustee Painter 

 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Hentze 

That the May 17, 2021 agenda be approved, as amended. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.3 Approval of the Minutes  

Page 12 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 3 

Moved by Trustee Hentze 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the April 26, 2021 Regular Board minutes be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.4 Business Arising from the Minutes 

None 

A.5 Student Achievement 

None 

A.6 District Presentations 

None 

A.7 Community Presentations 

a. Alanna Wish, SD61 Teacher and Parent, Proposed Budget Cuts to 

Inclusive Education 

Ms. Wish attended the Board meeting to speak to Trustees about 

the 2021-2022 Budget and the impact of the proposed cuts to 

inclusive education and reading recovery. 

b. Melanie MacIsaac, Retired SD61 Teacher, Proposed 2021-2022 

Budget 

Ms. MacIsaac attended the Board meeting to speak to Trustees 

about the 2021-2022 budget and the proposed cuts to programs. 

B. CORRESPONDENCE 

B.1 March 4, 2021, Songhees Nation to SD61, Education Policy and 

Directions Meeting of March 1st 

Trustee Duncan requested an update with regards to a response from 

Songhees Nation. Superintendent Green responded that there was no 

update to report. 

B.2 April 21, 2021, Campus View Elementary Grade 1/2 Student Letters to 

Trustees, Use of Rodenticides 

B.3 April 30, 2021, SD61 to Local MLA's, invitation to meet re SD61 

Budget 

Page 13 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 4 

B.4 May 11, 2021, SD61 to Ms. Alvarez' Grade 1/2 Class, re Use of 

Rodenticides 

B.5 April 22 - May 12, 2021, Correspondence for Proposed Budget 

B.6 May 11, 2021, Songhees Nation to SD61, Proposed 2021-2022 Budget 

Moved by Trustee Paynter 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Chair to write to the Chiefs and Councils of the Esquimalt and 

Songhees First Nations and to the representatives of the Metis Nation of 

Greater Victoria and the Indigenous Nations Education Council, to 

respectfully request meetings between the Board and their respective 

Chiefs and Councils to listen to their interests and concerns regarding 

public education and their relationship with the Board and staff of School 

District No. 61. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

B.7 May 13, 2021, Carey Newman to SD61, Reconciliation, Music, and 

Systemic Racism 

Chair Watters advised that the board has collaborated on a formal 

response to Mr. Newman. 

B.8 May 13, 2021, Esquimalt Nation to SD61, 2021-2022 Proposed Budget 

Trustee Whiteaker presented the motion. 

Superintendent Green advised that she has reached out to the First 

Nations Education Steering Committee via the Ministry of Education for 

guidance and will report back at a future meeting once she has heard 

back. 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to create a professional development plan to 

raise awareness and competency of School District No. 61 Senior 

Administration and Trustees around reconciliation, colonialism and 

systematic racism. 

Page 14 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 5 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

B.9 May 16, 2021, Metis Nation of Greater Victoria to SD61, Proposed 

2021-2022 Budget 

C. TRUSTEE REPORTS 

C.1 Chair's Report 

a. Chair's Report 

Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged International Day 

Against Homophobia, Transphobia and Biphobia and stated that 

the District celebrates diversity in our schools and reaffirmed the 

District's commitment to ensuring all students, staff & community 

members feel safe & respected. 

Chair Watters provided a verbal highlight of her recent meetings 

that included both the Minister of Education and local MLA's with 

respect to the District's budget process. Trustees Paynter and 

McNally expressed concern that other Trustees were not invited to 

the meetings. 

b. Annual Workplan: June 

Chair Watters presented for information, the Board Work Plan for 

June 2021. Trustee Whiteaker referred to the Review and Adjust 

the Governance Framework for the coming school year item and 

requested further information. Superintendent Green provided an 

overview of what this item would entail but further advised that due 

to the pandemic and other more emergent items, that this work 

would most likely occur in July. Discussion ensued amongst the 

Trustees with a request being made by Trustee Paynter for a post 

COVID fall contingency plan to be brought to the Board. 

Superintendent Green stated that she would include this in her 

June Board Report. 

C.2 Trustees' Reports  

a. Trustee Hentze - George Jay Naming Committee Report 

Trustee Hentze presented the report for information. 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee McNally 

Page 15 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 6 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) accept the George Jay Naming Committee Report, as 

presented. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

b. Trustee Painter 

Trustee Painter provided a verbal statement and apology for the 

Education Policy and Directions meeting of March 1, 2021 and 

resigned as the Chair of that Committee. 

c. Recess / Break 

Moved by Trustee Hentze 

Seconded by Trustee Duncan 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) take a recess break at 8:51 p.m. 

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Hentze, Trustee Painter, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Abstain (2): Trustee Ferris, and Trustee McNally 

Motion Carried (7 to 0) 

 

D. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Chair Watters called the meeting back to order at 8:58 p.m. 

D.1 Education Policy and Directions Committee 

a. May 3, 2021 meeting  

The draft minutes from the May 3, 2021 Education Policy and 

Directions Committee meeting were presented for information. 

D.2 Operations Policy and Planning Committee 

a. May 10, 2021 meeting 

The draft minutes from the May 10, 2021 Operations Policy and 

Planning Committee meeting were presented for information. 

b. Recommended motions from the May 10, 2021 meeting 

Page 16 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 7 

a. Policy Development - Bylaw 9360 

Trustee Painter provided rationale for the motion.  

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) direct the Policy Development Sub-

Committee to develop an addition or addendum to Bylaw 

9360 addressing how Board correspondence is managed in 

order to provide clear direction and transparency around 

Board processes. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

b. Revised Bylaw 9140, Ad Hoc Committee of the Board 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) approve revised Bylaw 9140, Ad Hoc 

Committee of the Board. 

For (8): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, Trustee McNally, Trustee 

Painter, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (1): Trustee Paynter 

Motion Carried (8 to 1) 

 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) agree to give one reading to revised Bylaw 

9140, Ad Hoc Committee of the Board, at the May 17, 2021 

Board of Education meeting. 

Read a first time the 17th day of May, 2021; 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

D.3 Audit Committee Report 

a. Recommended motion from the May 10, 2021 meeting 

Page 17 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 8 

Trustee Painter presented the report on behalf of the Audit 

Committee. 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) accept the March 2021 Quarterly Financial Report as 

presented to the Audit Committee. 

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, Trustee Painter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Abstain (2): Trustee McNally, and Trustee Paynter 

Motion Carried (7 to 0) 

 

E. DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS 

E.1 Superintendent's Report 

a. Monthly Report - April and May 2021 

Superintendent Green presented the report and provided a verbal 

update with respect to postponing and extending the budget 

process in order to hire an independent advisor to assess the 

budget and provide recommendations and advice going forward. 

Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with questions of 

clarification being asked of Superintendent Green. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Hentze 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) receive the Superintendent's reports as presented. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

b. 2021-2022 Specialty Academy Fees 

Associate Superintendent Roberts provided background and 

information with regards to specialty academy fees. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Hentze 

Page 18 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 9 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) makes available to the public via the District website, the 

schedules of fees that have been approved by the parents’ advisory 

council for the school where the board proposes to offer specialty 

academy. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

c. Trustee Questions 

Trustee Whiteaker requested to know how many consultations has 

the Superintendent recommended to the board, how many have 

been hired and how much money has been spent on this area in 

the term since she was hired as Superintendent. Superintendent 

Green advised that she would bring that information to the June 

Board meeting. 

Trustee Duncan requested an update with respect to when the new 

aviation program will be offered at Mt. Douglas High School. 

Superintendent Green advised that she would provide an answer to 

this at the June Board meeting. 

Trustee Painter stated that during a recent school visit he was 

advised that there seems to be a disconnect between schools and 

senior leadership and expressed his concerns. Superintendent 

Green advised that due to COVID visits have been curtailed and 

stated that when restrictions are lifted school visits will resume. 

E.2 Secretary-Treasurer's Report 

a. Monthly Report - April and May 2021 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris presented the April and May report. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Ferris 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) receive the Secretary- Treasurer's reports as presented. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

b. Sundance/Bank Street: Update 

Page 19 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 10 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris provided Trustees with an update as it 

relates to the Sundance/Bank Street property and stated that the 

City of Victoria has not yet reached a decision with respect to the 

heritage status of this property.  Discussion ensued amongst the 

Trustees with questions of clarification being asked of Secretary-

Treasurer Morris and Director of Facilities Morris. 

c. Summer School 2020 Ministry Compliance Audit Results  

Secretary-Treasurer Morris provided Trustees with information with 

respect to the Ministry Compliance Audit Results as it relates to 

summer school 2020. The District claimed 147 courses of which 15 

were not eligible for funding resulting in losses of revenue totaling 

$3225. Secretary-Treasurer Morris advised that summer learning 

would be administered through School District No. 61 Distributed 

Learning program for summer 2021. Trustees asked questions of 

clarification.  

d. Bylaw No. 2021-03: Disposal of Surplus Land located at 1765 

Lansdowne Road 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris presented the Bylaw and provided an 

explanation on the surplus land disposal at Lansdowne Middle 

School as well as the public consultation process. Discussion 

ensued amongst the Trustees with questions of clarification being 

asked of Secretary-Treasurer Morris. 

Moved by Trustee Ferris 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) approves: 

 the disposal of a 7.3 acre portion of School District property 

municipally known as 1765 Lansdowne Road, Saanich, BC and 

legally described as: PID: 005-852-962, Lot A Section 27 

Victoria District Plan 6679 (the “Property”); 

 the entering into and completion of the obligations contained in 

an agreement of purchase and sale (the “Purchase and Sale 

Agreement”) in respect of the Property with Conseil Scolaire 

Francophone de la Colombie-Britannique (the “Purchaser”) in 

the amount of $15,232,000.00 more or less; 

Page 20 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 11 

 the granting of authority for the Purchaser, acting in the name of 

the Board or otherwise, to advance certain zoning, subdivision, 

and development related amendments to the Property with the 

District of Saanich and other third parties prior to completion of 

the disposal of the Property; 

 the taking of all such action and the execution and delivery of all 

such documentation ancillary to, or related to, the foregoing; 

and 

 the authorization of the Secretary-Treasurer to execute and 

deliver, on behalf of the Board, the Purchase and Sale 

Agreement and all such amendments thereto and all related 

and ancillary documents as the Secretary-Treasurer may, in her 

discretion, consider advisable. 

The Board confirms that the Board will not require the Property for 

future educational purposes. 

READ A FIRST TIME THE 21st DAY OF JUNE, 2021. 

  

For (2): Trustee Leonard, and Trustee Ferris 

Against (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Duncan, Trustee Hentze, 

Trustee McNally, Trustee Painter, Trustee Paynter, and Trustee 

Whiteaker 

Motion Defeated (2 to 7) 

 

F. QUESTION PERIOD  

Q: With regards to the Budget Meeting agenda, I am writing to ask a clarification 

question to be answered prior to agenda item E.3. It seems to me that the way 

the agenda is structured, that the final reading of the budget and motions will be 

passed prior to the agenda item F. 

A: Chair Watters stated that Trustees can make a motion at the beginning of the 

meeting to move the motions up on the agenda. 

Q: In their March 4th letter, the Songhees Nation requested funding from the 

district for the purpose of creating a position dedicated to seeking input from and 

advocating for the Songhees Nation in its interactions with the board. Why didn't 

Page 21 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 12 

the March 8th and April 13th draft budgets reflect this request, in alignment with 

goal 2 of the district's strategic plan? 

A: Chair Watters stated that the board made a commitment in their letter to 

Songhees and Esquimalt Nations that it would be built into the budget.  

Q: Under what authority did the Superintendent and Board Chair request the 

Ministry of Education to "identify an independent advisor to help review the 

process and options and make recommendations to the Board?"  

A: Superintendent Green recognized that it is her role and responsibility when 

she sees that there are concerns from the community. It is the discretion of the 

Board if they chose to take this process or not.  

Q: As an indigenous member of the public I thank Ryan Painter for your sincere 

apology and Chair Jordan Watters for yours as well. My question is whether we 

the public will see an apology from Trustee McNally and Paynter as well? 

A: Chair Watters stated that she would share this question with the Trustees. 

Q: As a friend of Carey Newman, SD61 teacher and mother of two elementary 

students, how will you or multiple senior administration members take 

responsibility and respond to Carey Newman's letter outlining the blatant racism 

present in our District?  

A: Superintendent Green stated that she takes all responsibility for all systemic 

racism that has come forward through staff. She takes it very seriously and wants 

to improve. Superintendent Green personally spoke with Carey Newman to 

apologize.  

Q: Does the Superintendent of School District 61 take full responsibility and 

ownership for the racist rationale provide for this years budget in the May 10th 

Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting? 

A: Superintendent Green takes full responsibility as does Chair Watters.  

G. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS 

G.1 Record of In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - April 26, 2020 

G.2 Record of Special In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - May 10, 

2021 

H. NEW BUSINESS/NOTICE OF MOTIONS 

H.1 New Business 

a. Extend Meeting Time 

Page 22 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 13 

Moved by Trustee McNally 

Seconded by Trustee Paynter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) extend the meeting past 11:00 p.m. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

b. Independent Advisor 

The motion was presented and Trustees engaged in discussion 

and asked questions of clarification of Superintendent Green. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Hentze 

WHEREAS the Superintendent has engaged the Ministry by way of 

independent advisor to review where the District is, and to provide 

advice toward creating a balanced 2021-2022 budget, 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) extend its 2021-2022 budget process until such time as 

the advisor can report to the Board. 

For (6): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, 

Trustee Ferris, Trustee Hentze, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (3): Trustee McNally, Trustee Painter, and Trustee Paynter 

Motion Carried (6 to 3) 

Trustee Whiteaker exited the meeting at 10:59 p.m. 

c. Rollover Budget 

Trustee McNally presented the motion and provided a rationale. 

Ann Whiteaker left the meeting at 10:59 pm.  

Moved by Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) direct the Superintendent to direct the Secretary-Treasurer 

to construct a rollover budget using the usual / past year’s budget 

process for fiscal year 2021-2022, and that the Board direct the 

Superintendent to dismiss the special advisor called in by the 

Superintendent. 

Page 23 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 14 

Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a suggestion being 

made to table the motion until after the independent advisor has 

made a presentation and report. 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

Seconded by Trustee Ferris 

That the motion "That the Board of Education of School District No. 

61 (Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to direct the 

Secretary-Treasurer to construct a rollover budget using the usual / 

past year’s budget process for fiscal year 2021-2022, and that the 

Board direct the Superintendent to dismiss the special advisor 

called in by the Superintendent" be tabled until after the 

independent advisor has presented and provided a report. 

For (6): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, Trustee Painter 

Against (2): Trustee McNally, and Trustee Paynter 

Abstain (1): Trustee Duncan 

Motion Carried (6 to 2) 

 

H.2 Notice of Motions 

None 

I. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 11:06 p.m. 

Moved by Trustee Hentze 

Seconded by Trustee Leonard 

That the meeting be adjourned. 

  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 

 

Page 24 of 308



 

May 17, 2020/Regular Board Minutes 15 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 25 of 308



 

May 25, 2021/Special Board Budget Meeting

 1 

 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

MINUTES 

 

May 25, 2021, 7:30 p.m. 

 

Trustees Present: Jordan Watters, Board Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole 

Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze , Ryan Painter, Rob Paynter, 

Ann Whiteaker 

  

Trustee Regrets: Diane McNally 

  

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Katrina Stride, Associate Secretary-Treasurer, 

Andy Canty, Director, Information Technology for Learning, Vicki 

Hanley, Recorder 

 

Guest: Joan Axford, Independent Advisory 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING  

The meeting was called to order at 7:33 p.m. 

A.1 Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees 

Nations, on whose traditional territories, we live, we learn, and we do our 

work. 

Chair Watters provided the email address for question period. 

A.2 Approval of the Agenda  

Page 26 of 308



 

May 25, 2021/Special Board Budget Meeting

 2 

Moved by Trustee Ferris 

Seconded by Trustee Painter 

That the May 25, 2021 agenda be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

B. 2021-2022 ANNUAL BUDGET 

B.1 Independent Advisor Findings Presentation: Joan Axford 

Chair Watters welcomed independent advisor, Joan Axford, and thanked 

her for attending and presenting her findings to Trustees, staff and the 

public. 

Ms. Axford presented and provided a high level review of the District 

2021-2022 Operating Budget. 

C. QUESTION PERIOD RELATIVE TO PRESENTATION 

Ms. Axford responded to questions from Trustees and the public with respect to 

her review and stated that she would provide a more in-depth report that will be 

posted to the District website on Wednesday, May 26th.  

D. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 10:10 p.m. 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

Seconded by Trustee Duncan 

That the meeting be adjourned. 

  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 

 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 27 of 308



 

May 28, 2021/Special Board Meeting 

 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

Special Board Meeting 

MINUTES 

 

May 28, 2021, 8:00 p.m. 

 

Trustees Present: Jordan Watters, Board Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole 

Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze , Diane McNally, Ryan 

Painter, Rob Paynter, Ann Whiteaker 

  

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Andy Canty, Director, Information Technology 

for Learning 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

The meeting was called to order 8:02 p.m. 

A.1 Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees 

Nations, on whose traditional territories, we live, we learn, and we do our 

work. 

A.2 Approval of the Agenda 

By consent, a letter from the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations dated May 

28, 2021,  will be added as B.1. 

Moved By Trustee McNally 

Seconded By Trustee Duncan 

That the May 28, 2021 agenda be approved with the following addition: 

Page 28 of 308



 

May 28, 2021/Special Board Meeting 

C. QUESTION PERIOD 

and renumber: 

ADJOURNMENT to D. 

Carried Unanimously 

 

Moved By Trustee Duncan 

Seconded By Trustee Painter 

That the May 28, 2021 agenda be approved, as amended. 

Carried Unanimously 

 

B. NEW BUSINESS 

Moved By Trustee McNally 

Seconded By Trustee Whiteaker 

Recess the meeting to await Chief Sam's arrival. 

Meeting was recessed 8:13 p.m.  

Carried Unanimously 

 

Chair Watters reconvened the meeting at 8:20 p.m. 

B.2 Budget Motion - Trustee Paynter  

Trustee Paynter presented the motion. 

Moved By Trustee Paynter 

Seconded By Trustee Whiteaker 

That the Board of Education of School District 61 (Greater Victoria) direct 

the Superintendent to make district department heads and school 

administrators available for scheduled public meetings between June 1, 

2021, and June 18, 2021, that are intended to: 

 examine considerations included within the report submitted by Joan 

Axford, Independent Advisor, and 

 receive information from, and ask questions of, District Department 

heads and school administrators, 

Page 29 of 308



 

May 28, 2021/Special Board Meeting 

to identify budget allocation options for School Year 21/22 culminating in a 

Board meeting on June 18, 2021 to pass the annual budget bylaw for 

School Year 2021/2022. 

Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a suggestion being made to 

postpone this motion until the May 31, 2021 Special Board Budget 

meeting. 

Moved By Trustee Leonard 

Seconded By Trustee Ferris 

That the motion "That the Board of Education of School District 61 

(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to make district department 

heads and school administrators available for scheduled public meetings 

between June 1, 2021, and June 18, 2021, that are intended to: 

 examine considerations included within the report submitted by Joan 

Axford, Independent Advisor, and 

 receive information from, and ask questions of, District Department 

heads and school administrators, 

to identify budget allocation options for School Year 21/22 culminating in a 

Board meeting on June 18, 2021 to pass the annual budget bylaw for 

School Year 2021/2022" be postponed to the May 31, 2021 Special Board 

Budget meeting. 

For (5): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, and Trustee Painter 

Against (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally, Trustee Paynter, and 

Trustee Whiteaker 

Carried (5 to 4) 

 

D. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 9:50 p.m. 

Moved By Trustee Painter 

Seconded By Trustee Ferris 

That the meeting be adjourned. 

Carried Unanimously 

 

Page 30 of 308



 

May 28, 2021/Special Board Meeting 

 

 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 31 of 308



 

 
 June 10, 2020/2021 Special Board Meeting   1 
 

 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

Special Board Meeting 

MINUTES 

 

June 10, 2021, 7:00 p.m. 

 

Trustees Present: Jordan Watters, Board Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole 

Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze , Diane McNally, Rob 

Paynter, Ann Whiteaker 

 

Trustees Regrets: Ryan Painter 

 

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Katrina Stride, Associate Secretary-Treasurer, 

Julie Lutner, Director of Finance, Budgets and Financial 

Reporting, Financial Services, Chuck Morris, Director, Facilities 

Services, Andy Canty, Director, Information Technology for 

Learning, Kelly Gorman, Recorder 

 

Stakeholders  

Present: 

Karin Kwan, VCPAC, Carolyn Howe, GVTA, Jane Massy, 

President, CUPE 947, Connor McCoy, GVPVPA 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 

B. Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees 

Nations, on whose traditional territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work.  

Page 32 of 308



 

 
 June 10, 2020/2021 Special Board Meeting   2 
 

C. Approval of the Agenda 

Moved By Trustee Leonard 

Seconded By Trustee Whiteaker 

That the June 10, 2021 agenda be approved. 

For (7): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, Trustee Ferris, 

Trustee Hentze, Trustee McNally, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (1): Trustee Paynter 

Carried (7 to 1) 

 

E. BOARD SPECIAL BUDGET 

E.1 Trustee Paynter - District Hiring Freeze 

Trustee Paynter provided rationale for the motion. Trustees and staff 

debated the motion.  

Moved By Trustee Paynter 

Seconded By Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District 61 (Greater Victoria) direct 

the Superintendent to freeze all district level hiring at current levels until a 

plan to address the projected budget shortfall for School Year 2022/2023 

has been finalized. 

For (2): Trustee McNally, and Trustee Paynter 

Against (6): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, Trustee 

Ferris, Trustee Hentze, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Defeated (2 to 6) 

 

E.2 Trustee Paynter - Expense Payments 

Trustee Paynter provided rationale for the motion. 

Moved By Trustee Paynter 

Seconded By Trustee McNally 

That the motion "That the Board of Education of School District 61 

(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to suspend exempt and 

excluded expense payments until  after a report detailing exempt and 

excluded expenses for the School Year 2020/2021 and the Board has 

Page 33 of 308



 

 
 June 10, 2020/2021 Special Board Meeting   3 
 

determined whether spending caps need to be enacted generally or by 

expense categories (ex. Travel, mileage, etc.)" be postponed to the 

October 2021 Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting. 

For (6): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, Trustee 

Hentze, Trustee McNally, and Trustee Paynter 

Against (2): Trustee Ferris, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Carried (6 to 2) 

 

E.3 Trustee Paynter - Enrolment Growth Allocation 

Trustee Paynter provided rationale for the motion. Trustees, staff and 

stakeholders debated the motion. 

Moved By Trustee Paynter 

Seconded By Trustee McNally 

That the Board of Education of School District 61 (Greater Victoria) direct 

the Superintendent to apply any funds resulting from higher than expected 

student population numbers in School Year 2022/2023  be applied as 

priorities to the following programs: 

 Gifted Teacher Staffing 

 Clerical and/or School Assistants 

 Strong Start Learning Centre Supplements 

 Early Learning Framework Implementation 

 Enhanced Transition Wrap Around Supports 

For (1): Trustee Paynter 

Abstain (1): Trustee McNally 

Against (6): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Duncan, Trustee 

Ferris, Trustee Hentze, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Defeated (1 to 6) 

 

E.4 Trustee Leonard - Budget Working Group: Music 

Trustee Leonard provided rationale for the motion. Trustees, staff and 

stakeholders debated the motion. 

Page 34 of 308



 

 
 June 10, 2020/2021 Special Board Meeting   4 
 

Moved By Trustee Leonard 

Seconded By Trustee Hentze 

That the motion "That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) form a Budget working group to discuss music 

education and how this program might be offered in a more cost- effective 

manner. This working group will complete its work by January 2022." be 

postponed to the September 2021 Operations Policy and Planning 

Committee meeting. 

For (6): Trustee Watters, Trustee Leonard, Trustee Ferris, Trustee 

Hentze, Trustee McNally, and Trustee Whiteaker 

Against (2): Trustee Duncan, and Trustee Paynter 

Carried (6 to 2) 

 

F. QUESTION PERIOD 

Q1 - 

What actions will the board of trustees be taking to put pressure on the 

government for increased funding to ensure no more cuts to programs? 

A1: Trustee Watters we have not recalled our advocacy committee at this time. 

We are in the midst of planning.  

Q2 - 

Is the organizational structure available to the public? Where can we find it?  

A2: Superintendent Green, this is on the district website. Under: Our District, 

Departments. 

Q3 - 

Will this working group include music teachers at the Elementary, Middle, and 

Secondary levels who will speak about the lived & true experience of the SD61 

music classrooms? Trustees and Staff who are not in the music classroom on a 

daily basis should not be speaking about music education in SD61. 

Why is music the ONLY subject needing to have a working group? 

A3: Trustee Watters stated that they do not know who will be included in the 

group at this time. 

 

Page 35 of 308



 

 
 June 10, 2020/2021 Special Board Meeting   5 
 

  

Q4 -  

Minister Whiteside wrote to me today and informed me that the district is paying 

for three consultants to advise the Superintendent - namely Mike McKay, 

Theresa Rezansoff and Joan Axford. 

Are these the only consultants currently hired to assist the Superintendent?  

How much are we paying as a district to consultants to the Superintendent? 

A4: Full report coming June 21st.  

Q5 -  

When Trustee Leonard says she wants to get music off the budget line, does she 

mean that she wants to stop offering strings, band, choir, ukulele etc., or that she 

wants to include them in the provincial curriculum and stop treating music as an 

"extra”?  How do other trustees feel about this issue? 

A5: Trustee Duncan will provide her with the boards contact information.  

Q6 - 

When (if ever) did the board last approve an executive compensation freeze for 

the positions of Superintendent and Deputy Superintendents of Schools? 

A6: Trustee Watters stated that those positions are contracted and that they are 

negotiated per individual for all exempt staff.  

Q7 - 

In looking at the budget, the community has asked our trustees to gain insight 

into other ways to reduce spending, especially those that do not directly impact 

our students.  Here are some of my questions when looking at the budget these 

particular line items stand out: 

 The budget in 2020/21 for pro-d/travel was $1,840,391. Can we separate the 

spending out, and put some caps on the non-contractual obligations? 

 Why we have a cell phone budget of almost $850,000 for 2020/21? Do the 

tax payers really need to fund the exempt staff to have the newest 

iPhone/unlimited data plan? If this is a part of the contractual benefits 

package, does it need to be the most expensive?  Can this be reduced in 

future?  If it isn't actually cell phones, please separate it out in the budget. 

Page 36 of 308



 

 
 June 10, 2020/2021 Special Board Meeting   6 
 

 Vehicle leases, local/travel mileage - what are we leasing, and why? The 

budget for 2020/21 was $111,354 for vehicles, $2,393 for travel mileage, and 

$69,954 for local mileage.   

 What part of the budget covers catering for dinners/lunches at the district, and 

can that be reduced?  The people benefitting are most certainly able to afford 

lunches, but this money could be used to help fund a school lunch program.   

 Can we reduce banking service charges?  The banking service charges have 

a budget of $107,100.  Though this is a small fraction of the total budget, you 

should still be looking at any way to reduce that does not affect student 

programming. 

Thanks so much for taking the time to read through. 

A7: Trustee Watters we will be addressing these questions in the next budget 

cycle.  

G. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 

Moved By Trustee Whiteaker 

Seconded By Trustee Leonard 

That the meeting adjourn. 

Carried Unanimously 

 

 

 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 37 of 308



SD	  61	  
CLIMATE	  EMERGENCY	  

ACTION	  PLAN	  

-‐	  IS	  IT	  BOLD	  ENOUGH?	  
-‐	  IS	  IT	  FUNDED	  ADEQUATELY?	  

Jack	  Meredith,	  P.Eng.	  reHred	  
LEED	  Fellow	  Emeritus	  

June	  21,	  2021	  

Page 38 of 308



Background:	  
•  Professional	  engineer	  (architectural)	  
•  40+	  years	  experience	  with	  energy	  management	  
•  LEED	  faculty	  of	  CaGBC	  &	  USGBC	  
•  LEED	  Fellow	  Emeritus	  
•  Dockside	  Green	  Commissioning	  Authority	  
•  Specializing	  in:	  
–  	  deep	  energy	  retrofits	  
– Net	  Zero	  Energy	  Buildings	  
– Renewable	  Energy	  (Photo	  Voltaic	  (PV))	  	  

Page 39 of 308



Why	  I	  am	  here?	  

1.   TO	  SUPPORT	  THE	  MOTION	  FOR	  AN	  ACTION	  PLAN	  
2.  To	  recommend	  the	  AcHon	  Plan	  be	  BOLD	  
3.  To	  recommend	  adequate	  funding	  for	  a	  BOLD	  AcHon	  Plan	  	  

•  Concern:	  an	  AcHon	  Plan	  that	  is	  NOT	  BOLD	  ENOUGH!	  

•  Typical	  energy	  management	  plans	  target:	  
–  	  40-‐50%	  savings	  &	  a	  maximum	  5	  year	  payback	  

•  Climate	  Emergency	  implies	  a	  need	  for:	  
–  70-‐80%	  savings	  &	  longer	  payback	  criteria	  (range	  of	  15	  years;	  7%	  ROI)	  

Page 40 of 308



Bold	  AcHon	  Plan	  –	  Why?	  
•  A	  CLIMATE	  EMERGENCY	  needs	  a	  BOLD	  AcHon	  Plan	  
•  Modest	  acHons	  spoil	  the	  opportunity	  for	  real	  change	  

–  Building	  systems	  are	  generally	  upgraded	  on	  a	  20+	  year	  cycle	  
– Make	  sure	  ACTIONS	  are	  BOLD	  now	  not	  in	  2040-‐2050	  

RECOMMENDATIONS:	  
1.  Avoid	  quick	  fixes	  to	  major	  systems	  (envelop;	  lighHng	  &	  mechanical).	  
2.  Avoid	  district	  wide	  programs	  (that	  do	  not	  maximize	  savings)	  
3.  Focus	  on	  comprehensive	  deep	  retrofits	  in	  targeted	  buildings	  

–  Building	  by	  building	  creaHng	  a	  Net	  Zero	  Energy	  porkolio	  
4.  Mandate	  all	  future	  schools	  achieve	  Net	  Zero	  Energy	  
5.  Set	  a	  SD	  wide	  energy	  reducHon	  goal	  of	  at	  least	  75%.	  
6.  Ensure	  adequate	  funding	  and	  payback	  criteria	  (see	  example)	  

Page 41 of 308



•  Net	  Zero	  Energy	  buildings	  are	  done	  now!	  
•  Proven	  technology	  is	  well	  understood!	  	  
•  Local	  professionals	  are	  able	  to	  do	  the	  work!	  
•  Costs	  of	  many	  technologies	  have	  dropped!	  

•  IncenHve	  programs	  are	  available!	  

•  Climate	  Emergency	  requires	  this	  level	  of	  change!	  

-‐	  Is	  Net	  Zero	  Energy	  Possible?	  
-‐	  Is	  75%	  ReducHon	  Possible?	  

Page 42 of 308



Economics:	  
•  GENERIC	  EXAMPLE	  (to	  show	  scope	  of	  $	  needed):	  
–  Current	  energy	  use	  $1.32	  /	  sq.	  p.	  
–  Climate	  emergency	  use	  $0.32	  /	  sq.	  p.	  (75%	  savings)	  
–  Savings	  $1/sq.	  p.	  
–  Capital	  investment	  $15/sq.p.	  

•  Based	  on	  15	  payback	  (6.6%	  ROI)	  	  
–  	  for	  a	  2,000,000	  sq.p.	  school	  district	  

•  Energy	  savings	  would	  be	  $2,000,000/year	  
•  Budget	  would	  be	  2,000,000	  X	  $15/sq.p	  =	  $30,000,000	  

•  SCOPE	  REQUIRED	  FOR	  CLIMATE	  EMERGENCY	  
–  It	  can	  be	  done	  if	  there	  is	  a	  will	  to	  do	  it.	  

Page 43 of 308



 
  Esquimalt Nation        Songhees Nation 

  1189 Kosapsum Crescent                 1100 Admirals Rd  

  Victoria, BC                   Victoria, BC 

  V9A 7K7                   V9A 2P6 

 
 
May 28th, 2021 

 

Chair Jordan Watters 

SD 61 Board  

556 Boleskine Rd,  

Victoria, BC 

V8Z 1E8 

 

Attn: Chair Watters, 

Please accept this letter from Esquimalt and Songhees Nation’s Chief and Council with the upmost care 

and consideration, as it pertains to our concern with the proposed budget considerations and our belief 

that these considerations violate the Ministry of Education’s foundational principals. 

As a prelude to our letter, Leadership would like to express our alignment with the Ministry of Education’s 

commitments outlined in the platform, Working for You, which include (but are not limited to): 1) Putting 

people first: protecting and enhancing the public services; 2) Lasting and meaningful reconciliation: to 

focus on creating opportunities for Indigenous peoples to be full partners in the economy and providing 

a clear and sustainable path for everyone to work toward lasting reconciliation; and 3) Equity and anti-

racism: implementing mitigative practices to address racialized and marginalized people who face historic 

and present-day barriers that limit their full participation in their communities, workplaces, government 

and their lives. 

While these principles are the focus of the Ministry, we fear they are lost at a regional level. 

As indicated in Ms. Axford’s summary report, a number of profoundly negative impacts are listed as a by-

product of your decisions, which conflict with the aforementioned commitments by the Ministry. 

To date, both Nations have met with Minister Whiteside and Joan Axford. These meetings produced the 

following understanding of next steps and the expectations from the Nations: 

1. Minister Whiteside and SD 61 are collaborating to address the budget cut concerns; 

2. It is both Nation’s expectation that the Board will reconsider their proposed cuts. Now is not the 

time for austerity, or a living within our means “budget reset”, or paying down historical structural 

capital deficits. Now is the time for elected officials to hear the needs of constituents and support 

their communities, particularly those who are most vulnerable and already disproportionately 

impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The proposed budget feels poorly conceived, and appeared 

to pit Indigenous students against their non-Indigenous peers through a false and deeply 

concerning narrative. These cuts will only exacerbate the growing challenge of the increased 

learning gaps and mental health challenges within our school population as a result of the COVID-

19 global pandemic; 

3. As Rightsholders, it is the expectation of both Nations that SD 61, in consultation with Esquimalt 

and Songhees Nations, will promptly establish protocols for transparent budget reviews and 

ongoing consultation with the Esquimalt and Songhees Nation Leadership. 

Page 44 of 308



 

4. The SD 61 Board will issue a public apology to the communities at large for the Boards’ conduct 

exhibited at the March 1st and May 10th meetings, both of which permeated a pattern of colonial 

thinking – it is our expectation that this apology will acknowledge indiscretions undertaken by 

specific individuals and be issued in the next week or two; 

5. A SD 61 Board representative will connect with Esquimalt Nation’s Executive Director, Katie 

Hooper, to plan the logistics for individual apologies (in person or virtual) to Esquimalt Nation and 

Songhees Nation Chief and Council for their inappropriate conduct. Formal, in person apologies 

are a sign of respect in Indigenous culture and we are anticipating that the Board is striving to 

improve their understanding of these cultural practices; 

6. SD 61 Board Chair, Trustees and Senior Administrators are required to receive cultural sensitivity 

training delivered by qualified First Nations service providers; 

7. Long term plans to build capacity and address issues of systemic racism within SD 61 will continue 

to be discussed. Esquimalt and Songhees Nations would like to see a Special Advisor brought in to 

perform a comprehensive assessment and steps towards meaningful, long-lasting change; 

8. The Shoreline and Craigflower amalgamation project will be reset. 

Finally, Esquimalt and Songhees Nation’s are in support of the following proposed motion: 

That the Board of Education of School District 61 (Greater Victoria) schedule public meetings between 

June 1, 2021, and June 18, 2021, to:  

1. examine considerations included within the report submitted by Joan Axford, Independent 

Advisor, and receive information from, and ask questions of, District Department heads and 

school administrators,  

2. to identify budget allocation options for School Year 21/22 culminating in a Board meeting on 

June 18, 2021 to pass the annual budget bylaw for School Year 2021/2022. 

Esquimalt and Songhees Nations have been insulted and ignored by previous apparent attempts at 

“consultation” including the Craigflower/Shoreline staff presentations, the subsequent public hearing on 

the matter where consultation shortcomings were identified, the summary cancellation of the March 1st 

2021 Education Policy Committee meeting and the use of First Nations students as a wedge to justify the 

budget proposal championed by staff.  If the District is sincere in its desires to repair the relationship with 

the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, an invitation to actively participate in comprehensive budget 

meetings would be an appropriate first step. 

We thank you in advance for your thoughtful consideration of this letter and we look forward to 

collaborative and constructive next steps. 

Signed,  

 
 
Chief Robert Thomas      Chief Ron Sam 
Esquimalt Nation      Songhees Nation 
 
cc:  Honorable Minister Jennifer Whiteside, Ministry of Education 
 Honorable Minister Murray Rankin, Minister of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation 
 Honourable Mitzi Dean, MLA for Esquimalt-Metchosin 

Page 45 of 308



Page 46 of 308



Page 47 of 308



Page 48 of 308



Page 49 of 308



Page 50 of 308



Page 51 of 308



Page 52 of 308



Page 53 of 308



Page 54 of 308



Page 55 of 308



Page 56 of 308



Page 57 of 308



Page 58 of 308



Page 59 of 308



Page 60 of 308



Page 61 of 308



Page 62 of 308



Page 63 of 308



Page 64 of 308



Page 65 of 308



Page 66 of 308



Page 67 of 308



Page 68 of 308



Page 69 of 308



Page 70 of 308



Page 71 of 308



Page 72 of 308



Page 73 of 308



Page 74 of 308



Page 75 of 308



Page 76 of 308



Page 77 of 308



Page 78 of 308



Page 79 of 308



Page 80 of 308



Page 81 of 308



Page 82 of 308



Page 83 of 308



Page 84 of 308



Page 85 of 308



Page 86 of 308



Page 87 of 308



Page 88 of 308



Page 89 of 308



Page 90 of 308



Page 91 of 308



Page 92 of 308



Page 93 of 308



Page 94 of 308



Page 95 of 308



Page 96 of 308



Page 97 of 308



Page 98 of 308



Page 99 of 308



Page 100 of 308



Page 101 of 308



Page 102 of 308



Page 103 of 308



Page 104 of 308



Page 105 of 308



Page 106 of 308



Page 107 of 308



Page 108 of 308



Page 109 of 308



Page 110 of 308



Page 111 of 308



Page 112 of 308



Page 113 of 308



Page 114 of 308



Page 115 of 308



Page 116 of 308



Page 117 of 308



Page 118 of 308



Page 119 of 308



Page 120 of 308



Page 121 of 308



Page 122 of 308



Page 123 of 308



Page 124 of 308



Page 125 of 308



Page 126 of 308



Page 127 of 308



Page 128 of 308



Page 129 of 308



Page 130 of 308



Page 131 of 308



Page 132 of 308



Page 133 of 308



Page 134 of 308



Page 135 of 308



Page 136 of 308



Page 137 of 308



Page 138 of 308



Page 139 of 308



Page 140 of 308



Page 141 of 308



Page 142 of 308



Page 143 of 308



Page 144 of 308



Page 145 of 308



Page 146 of 308



Page 147 of 308



Page 148 of 308



Page 149 of 308



Page 150 of 308



Page 151 of 308



Page 152 of 308



Page 153 of 308



Page 154 of 308



Page 155 of 308



Page 156 of 308



Page 157 of 308



Page 158 of 308



Page 159 of 308



Page 160 of 308



Page 161 of 308



Page 162 of 308



Page 163 of 308



Page 164 of 308



Page 165 of 308



Page 166 of 308



Page 167 of 308



Page 168 of 308



Page 169 of 308



Page 170 of 308



Page 171 of 308



Page 172 of 308



Page 173 of 308



Page 174 of 308



Page 175 of 308



Page 176 of 308



Page 177 of 308



Page 178 of 308



Page 179 of 308



Page 180 of 308



Page 181 of 308



Page 182 of 308



Page 183 of 308



Page 184 of 308



Page 185 of 308



THE CITY OF VICTORIA OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

June 7, 2021

Jordan Watters, Chair

Greater Victoria School District No. 61

Board of Education

Via email: jwatters(@.sd61.bc.ca

Dear Chair Watters,

At our Council Meeting on May 20, 2021, Victoria City Council ratified the following motion:

Bank Street School Building - Proposed Partnership
That Council requests that staff engage School District 61, to propose a partnership and

offer municipal financial assistance to restore the Bank Street School building (1623-

1625 Bank Street) for educational and community use.

The resolution arose from public and neighbourhood feedback that did not support the

demolition of this school, and from recent building condition assessments that concluded a

better-than-anticipated condition given the age of the school building.

By way of this letter, we are formally requesting the Greater Victoria School District Board of

Education give direction to SD61 staff to work directly with the City of Victoria to explore

potential solutions that would permit the restoration of the Bank Street School building.

The City staff member in charge of this file is Peter Rantucci, Head of Strategic Real Estate, who

can be contacted at prantucci@victoria.ca or 250.634.4158. We look forward to the possibility

of collaborating on this project.

Sincerely,

~1?4
Lisa Helps

Victoria Mayor

The City of Victoria recognizes the Songhees and Esquimalt Nations in whose traditional territories we live and work "Hay.} IVX qa"

1 Centennial Square Victoria British Columbia Canada V8W 1P6

Telephone (250) 361-0200 Fax (250) 361-0348 Email mayor@victoria.ca

www.victoria.ca

Page 186 of 308



Page 187 of 308



Page 188 of 308



Page 189 of 308



Page 190 of 308



Page 191 of 308



Page 192 of 308



Page 193 of 308



Page 194 of 308



Page 195 of 308



Page 196 of 308



Page 197 of 308



Page 198 of 308



Page 199 of 308



Page 200 of 308



Page 201 of 308



Page 202 of 308



Page 203 of 308



Page 204 of 308



Page 205 of 308



Page 206 of 308



Page 207 of 308



Page 208 of 308



Page 209 of 308



Page 210 of 308



Page 211 of 308



Page 212 of 308



Page 213 of 308



Page 214 of 308



Page 215 of 308



Page 216 of 308



Page 217 of 308



Page 218 of 308



1 
 

 
 

 

This has been a difficult year for many reasons. The heartbreak of lost children found at the 

Kamloops Indian Residential School and the discoveries in Manitoba and soon to come I am sure all 

across the country bring a profound grief and sharpen the focus of intergenerational traumas. I am 

thankful for the work our Indigenous Education Department and of educators and administrators 

across our district who have worked to support students and families in culturally safe ways.  

Systemic racism exists across Canadian society and our school system. Residential schools, the 

60’s scoop, the child welfare system and the achievement gaps in SD61 are threads of common 

fabric of colonialism and systematic bias. We have made some significant mistakes over the last 

year that have caused harm to the Four Houses we serve: Songhees Nation, Esquimalt Nation, 

Métis Nation, and our Urban Indigenous Community. I am committed to working in culturally 

appropriate ways to apologize and mend the damage we have created and to understanding what is 

needed to move towards anti-racist governance.  

As a Board and School District we have significant work to do to unpack colonialism and its culture 

in SD61 schools and the district. We realize this will require commitment, action and representation 

that reflects our intentions and shows community that our intentions are real. We know we must 

work with community and staff to be intentional in our actions and the training we require to be 

congruent to what words we are bringing forward publicly. We must do the work. 

Our budget process was arduous for everyone involved. We heard from all corners of our learning 

community shared passion for and commitment to public education and to improving the life chances 

of all of our students. As we look to the future, I am optimistic that we can use our shared values and 

commitment to propel us forward to improved processes and improved outcomes. 

COVID-19 changed all of our lives and deeply impacted our schools. Through every uncertainty and 

unexpected shift, our entire staff have put students and families at the centre of their planning and 

practice. Without their efforts, this would have been even more difficult for our communities and our 

students. Thank you to all our staff for showing up with their best selves even when it was difficult. 

I hope everyone has a fun-filled and restorative summer break. Please stay safe and be kind to one 

another.  

 

 

 

 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112  

Page 219 of 308



2 
 

 

Chair’s Report 

Update on Activities 

This has been the busiest spring I can remember. I met with representatives from VCPAC, the 

GVTA, CUPE 947, as well as with many teachers, EAs, parents, and community members. In 

addition I attended the following meetings: 

 April 27 – Agenda Setting Meeting 

 April 28 – Esquimalt Community Leaders 

 April 29 – Coaching Session with Raj Dhasi 

 April 29 – Budget Working Session #3 – Staffing Summaries, Facilities, Capital, Technology 

 April 30 – Budget Meeting with Minister Whiteside 

 May 3 – Budget Working Session with Senior Leadership Team 

 May 3 – Education Policy and Directions 

 May 4 – Agenda Setting Meeting 

 May 6 – Budget Working Session #4 – Survey Data  

 May 10 – Special In-Camera Board Meeting 

 May 10 – Operations Policy and Planning   

 May 11 – Budget Working Session with Senior Leadership Team 

 May 11 – Agenda Setting Meeting 

 May 13 – Budget Meeting with local MLA’s 

 May 16 – Trustee Budget Process Extension Update 

 May 17 – In-Camera Board Meeting 

 May 17 – Regular Board Meeting 

 May 19 – Meeting with Joan Axford 

 May 25 – Agenda Setting Meeting 

 May 25 – Special Budget Meeting 

 May 27 – Public Feedback Meeting: Budget 2021-2022  

 May 28 – Special Board of Education Meeting 

 May 30 – Coaching Session with Raj Dhasi 

 June 1 – BCSTA Board Chairs Meeting 

 June 1– Agenda Setting Meeting 

 June 2 – Special Budget Meeting 

 June 2 – Agenda Setting Meeting 

 June 3 – Special Budget Meeting  

 June 6 – Chair, Vice Chair Superintendent Meeting 

 June 7 – Education Policy and Directions 

 June 8 – Agenda Setting Meeting 

 June 9 – Trustee Working Session – Assessments  

 June 10 – Special In-Camera Board Meeting 

 June 10 – Special Board Meeting 

 June 14 – Operations Policy and Planning   

 June 15 – BCSTA Board Chairs Meeting 

 June 15 – Agenda Setting Meeting  

 

 

 

 

Page 220 of 308



3 
 

 

 

Chair’s Report 

Professional Development 

I have been working my way through some Canada Reads book selections and have been recently 

been reading Johnny Appleseed by Joshua Whitehead. It is a moving novel about a Two Spirit 

Indigiqueer youth and it explores dis/connection, belonging and the cycles created by colonialism. 

Over the past school year I have enjoyed the following books, if anyone is looking for summer 

reading recommendations: 

 My Grandmother's Hands: Racialized Trauma and the Pathway to Mending Our Hearts and 
Bodies by Resmaa Menakem 

 Me and White Supremacy: Combat Racism, Change the World and Become a Good 
Ancestor by Layla Saad and Robin DiAngelo 

 Educated by Tara Westover 

 From the Ashes: My Story of Being Métis, Homeless, and Finding My Way by Jesse Thistle 

 Five Little Indians by Michelle Good 

 Research is Ceremony: Indigenous Research Methods by Shawm Wilson 

 The Skin We’re In: A Year of Black Resistance and Power by Desmond Cole 

 The Inconvenient Indian by Thomas King 

 Antelope Woman by Louise Erdrich 

 

 

 

  

Page 221 of 308



 

 1 

 

Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 

MINUTES 

 

June 7, 2021 

Broadcasted via YouTube 

https://bit.ly/3czx8bA 

 

Trustees Present: Education Policy and Directions members: Tom Ferris, 

Chair, Nicole Duncan, Diane McNally, Ryan Painter, Jordan 

Watters (ex officio) 

Operations Policy and Planning members: Elaine Leonard, 

Rob Paynter, Angie Hentze, Ann Whiteaker (left meeting 7:10 

p.m.) 

  

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Andy Canty, Director, Information Technology 

for Learning, Kelly Gorman, Recorder 

 

Rightholders: Chief Rob Thomas, Esquimalt Nation 

 

Stakeholders: Kristil Hammer, VCPAC President, Connor McCoy, GVPVPA 

President, Jane Massy, CUPE 947 President, Cindy Graf, GVTA 

Pro-D Chair 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00pm. 

A.1 Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Page 222 of 308



 

 2 

Ex Officio Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and 

Songhees Nations, on whose traditional territories we live, we learn, and 

we do our work.  

A.2 Approval of the Agenda 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the June 7, 2021 Education Policy and Directions Committee 

meeting agenda be amended with the following addition: 

New A.3 Committee Chair Election Variation  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.3 Committee Chair Election Variation - Trustee Whiteaker 

Trustees debated the motion.  

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the Education Policy and Planning Committee forgo the election of 

chair until November 2021, and share the responsibility equally among 

committee members until regularly scheduled elections.  

For (1): Trustee Watters 

Against (4): Trustee Duncan, Trustee Ferris, Trustee McNally, and 

Trustee Painter 

Motion Defeated (1 to 4) 

 

A.4 Election of Chair - Education Policy and Directions Committee 

Three Trustees were nominated; Trustee Duncan, Trustee McNally and 

Trustee Ferris. Trustee Duncan and Trustee McNally did not accept the 

nomination. Trustee Ferris accepted the nomination, was acclaimed as the 

Chair of the Education Policy and Planning Committee, and assumed the 

Chair of the meeting.  

A.5 Approval of the Minutes 

Trustee Duncan requested that the May 3, 2021 Education Policy and 

Directions Committee minutes be amended. 

  Amendment: 

Page 223 of 308



 

 3 

Moved by Trustee Duncan 

Under A.2 For (1) changed to (2), Against (4) change to (3) and Motion 

defeated (2 to 3) 

Under C.1 Trustees provided thanks for the presentation and asked the 

presenter questions of clarification.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Chair Ferris called for the vote on the approval of the May 3, 2021 minutes 

as amended. 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

That the May 3, 2021 Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting 

minutes be approved as amended.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.6 Business Arising from Minutes 

None 

B. PRESENTATIONS TO THE COMMITTEE 

B.1 Budget - Mary Ann Watson 

Mary Ann Watson presented on the budget. Trustees provided thanks for 

the presentation.   

B.2 Budget - Dr Robert Oppenheimer 

Dr Robert Oppenheimer presented on the budget. Trustees provided 

thanks for the presentation.  

C. NEW BUSINESS 

C.1 Indigenous Education - Shelly Niemi, District Administrator, 

Indigenous Education Department 

Shelley Niemi presented on Indigenous Education in School District No. 

61 (Greater Victoria). Trustees provided thanks for the presentation and 

asked questions of clarification.  

C.2 District Team: SOGI and GSA updates - Jon Hamlin, District Team 

Vice-Principal  

Page 224 of 308



 

 4 

Jon Hamlin presented updates on SOGI and GSA. Trustees provided 

thanks and asked questions of clarification.  

C.3 School Police Liaison Officer Ad Hoc Committee - Trustee Duncan 

Trustee Duncan provided rationale for the motion.  

Moved by Trustee Duncan 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to allocate a budget of $5,000.00 to assist the 

School Police Liaison Ad Hoc Committee to complete its work.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

C.4 New Accessible British Columbia Act - Trustee Painter 

Trustee Painter provided rationale for the motion.  

Moved by Trustee Painter 

That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater Victoria) 

send a letter to the Parliamentary Secretary for Accessibility (MLA Dan 

Coulter) and local MLAs requesting that people and children with 

dyslexia/learning and communication disability designations be included in 

the new Accessible British Columbia Act, which has not yet received final 

reading.    

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

D. NOTICE OF MOTION 

 None 

E. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None 

F. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting adjourned at 8:40pm 

Moved by Trustee Painter 

That the meeting adjourn. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Page 225 of 308



 

 5 

 

 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 226 of 308



 

 
 

 

 

TO:  The Education Policy and Directions Committee 

FROM: Trustee Duncan, Chair, School Police Liaison Officer Program Review Ad Hoc 

Committee 

RE:  School Police Liaison Officer Program Review Ad Hoc Committee Update   

DATE:  June 7, 2021 

 
The purpose of the memo is to provide an update regarding the School Police Liaison Officer 
Program Review Ad Hoc Committee’s progress to date and to request financial support to assist 
the Committee to complete its engagement work. 

 
Background:  
 
The School Police Liaison Officer Program Review Ad Hoc Committee was established by the 
Board of Education to undertake discussions with members of the school community, including, 
but not limited to racialized, Indigenous and LGBTQ+ staff, parents and students to: 

 
1. Determine what, if any, concerns there may be regarding the District's School Police 

Liaison Officer program; and 
  

2. Develop recommendations, as required, on what changes should be made to the 
program to improve its value to the school community including consideration of 
cessation of the program.  

 

Update:  
 
The Committee met on 4 February 2021, 1 April 2021, 6 May 2021 and 1 June 2021. The 
Committee did not meet in March 2021. 
 
The Committee has 21 members, including four student representatives, one representative 
from the Esquimalt Nation, two representatives from GVTA, two representatives from CUPE, 
two representatives from VCPAC, one representative from Victoria Police Department and one 
representative from Saanich Police Department (with an alternate), two members of the Senior 
Leadership Team, two School Administrators, one School District Communications staff 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112  

Page 227 of 308



 

 
 

member, and two Trustees. Topics of discussion at the Committee meetings have included: the 
Committee’s Terms of Reference specifically the purpose and deliverables, the timeline for the 
Committee work, the role of the School Police Liaison Officers, the importance of student and 
parent voice, the importance of considering the program through the lens of racism and 
discrimination. 
 
During the February meeting the Committee received a Communications Plan developed by 
Lisa McPhail, Manager of Communications & Community Engagement for SD61. The 
Communications Plan will follow guidelines from the International Association for Public 
Participation (IAP2) Spectrum of Public Participation for consultation and includes a timeline to 
guide the work of the Committee. 
 
The Committee also participated in an anti-racism workshop provided by Dr. Moussa Magassa. 
The Committee is currently exploring inviting a community expert to speak about a trauma 
informed approach when assessing school police liaison programs. 
 
In April 2021 the Committee started a monthly Speakers Series open to anyone wishing to 

make a presentation to the Committee. During the April Speaker Series the Committee received 

its first four guest presentations from various stakeholder groups such as the GVTA, Victoria 

Immigrant and Refugee Centre Society (VIRCS) and the Crime Reduction & Exploitation 

Diversion Coordinator, Pacific Centre Family Services Association (MYST). 

Currently the Committee is in the information gathering stage. The Committee is seeking to hear 
feedback and to gather information which it will then consider prior to making recommendations 
for the Board's consideration. The Committee received a draft public survey in May 2021 from 
Lisa McPhail. The Committee is currently working to finalize the public survey and will meet 
again before the end of the school year to progress this work. The Committee spent a 
considerable amount of time in May and June  discussing the need to adapt its engagement 
plans, as required in order to ensure that it has heard from our diverse learning community and 
the public prior to making any recommendations to the Board. 
 
At the conclusion of the engagement process the Committee intends to provide a Summary 
Engagement Report to the Education Policy and Directions Standing Committee on a date to be 
confirmed. The Committee will then provide a set of recommendations to be discussed initially 
at an Education Policy and Directions Standing Committing meeting in the 2021-2022 school 
year before being presented to the Board of Education. 
 
The Committee has reached out to invite feedback from the following stakeholders:  
 

 ICA  

 Inclusion BC  

 Native Friendship Centre  

 Victoria Immigrant and Refugee Centre Society  

 Pacific People’s Partnership  

 International Institute for Child Rights and Development (ties with Royal Roads)  

 Hulitan Family and Community Services Society  

Page 228 of 308



 

 
 

 UVIC – Indigenous Academic and Community Engagement  

 Camosun – Centre for Indigenous Education and Community Connections  

 Resilience BC  

 Mothers Against Racism  

 The Support Network for Indigenous Women and Women of Colour  

 Urban Native Youth Association  

 Mosaic BC  

 Out on Screen  

 BC Community Alliance  

 Black Lives Matter Vancouver  

 BC Black History Awareness Society  

 Metis Nation of British Columbia  

 First Nations Health Authority  

 UVIC Academic Advisory Committee on Equity and Diversity  

 Jamaican Community Victoria Association  

 Binkadi Community Association  

 African Heritage Association of Vancouver Island 
 

Recommended motion: 
 
That the Board of Education of School District 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to 
allocate a budget of $5,000 to assist the School Police Liaison Ad Hoc Committee to complete 
its work. 
 

Page 229 of 308



TO: Education Policy and Directions Committee 

FROM:  Trustee Ryan Painter 

RE: Bill 6 – the Accessible British Columbia Act 

DATE: June 7, 2021 

Background: 
The Accessible British Columbia Act, Bill 6, is currently before the Legislative Assembly of BC for debate 
at second reading and The Disability Alliance of BC has some considerable concerns around the bill’s 
narrow definition of “impairment”, the limited application of the bill, the failure to refer to human rights and 
BC’s Human Rights Code, the failure to include interactive communication within the bill’s list of standards 
and weak enforcement processes. These concerns are laid out in detail below (emphasis added): 

1. Definition: Bill 6 has excluded learning and communication within its definition of impairment. 
The Accessible Canada Act includes these two areas and therefore we feel the Accessible BC Act 
should be in alignment with federal law. We are concerned this omission will systemically exclude 
and discriminate against British Columbians who have communication disabilities as well as 
those who have learning disabilities (such as Dyslexia).

2. Timelines: Bill 6 includes no deadline or timeline of any kind for the creation of accessibility standards 
or the elimination of barriers. Other Canadian accessibility laws specify deadlines for the elimination of 
barriers. Disability Alliance BC believes that including a specific timeline within the ABCA is still vitally 
important for the purposes of ensuring the BC government is accountable for delivering a concerted and 
timely effort towards promoting accessibility and identifying, removing or prevent barriers for British 
Columbians with disabilities.

3. Limited application: Bill 6 currently only applies to the provincial government and organizations
“prescribed” by the government. Disability Alliance BC is concerned that unless other organizations are 
explicitly prescribed in law, the ABCA may apply only to offices and services administered directly by 
provincial government ministries. British Columbians with disabilities deserve to feel certain in knowing 
that their access to full and meaningful participation in society is being promoted and enforced through 
every level of society, not only through government services.

4. No reference to human rights: Unlike other Canadian accessibility laws, Bill 6 does not explicitly state 
that nothing within the law diminishes the existing rights of people with disabilities. Without any explicit 
reference to the Human Rights Code, there is a risk that Bill 6 may make it harder for people with 
disabilities to exercise the right to be accommodated. This must not be allowed to happen.

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112

Office of  
Trustee Ryan Painter 

Page 230 of 308



 

 

5. No distinction of ‘communication’ within standards: While Bill 6 includes “information and  
communications” as a standard, by making ‘communications’ plural, it fails to acknowledge the 
requirement for human communication accessibility, which may include speech, gestures, sign language, 
writing, pointing to object or pictures, spelling words, using a communication device and human help. We 
are concerned this lack of distinction in Bill 6 will further systemically exclude people with speech, 
language and communication disabilities. 
 
6. Weak enforcement process: Bill 6 does not provide any process for anyone to submit complaints when 
organizations fail to comply with accessibility standards, whereas other Canadian accessibility laws have 
better enforcement processes. Disability Alliance BC is concerned that the lack of an individual complaints 
process within Bill 6 will, ironically, create further barriers for people with disabilities in seeking remedy on 
the infringement of any rights which they may be granted in subsequent regulations and standards 
developed by the Act. 
 
Rationale (Issue): 
Bill 6 is a good start, but by excluding dyslexia/learning and communication disability designations 
from the new act, there is a significant defect in the bill and its inability to address significant and 
complex learning needs of students in BC 
 
Alignment to Strategic Plan: 
This motion addresses the strategic plan via Goal 1 Strategy 3 (address the inequity of outcomes 
for diverse learners in literacy, numeracy, engagement and completion rates), Goal 3 Strategy 4 
(Address the inequity of opportunity for all learners to maximize physical health and mental well-
being). 

 
 and under what category: 

• Advocacy 
 

 

Page 231 of 308



 

 

Recommendation: 
That the Board of Education of Greater Victoria (D61) send a letter to the Parliamentary Secretary 
for Accessibility (MLA Dan Coulter) and local MLAs requesting that people and children with 
dyslexia/learning and communication disability designations be included in the new Accessible 
British Columbia Act, which has not yet received final reading. 

Page 232 of 308



 

 1 

 

Operations Policy and Planning Committee Meeting 

REGULAR MINUTES 

 

June 14, 2021, 7:00 p.m. 

Broadcasted via YouTube 

https://bit.ly/3czx8bA 

 

Trustees Present: Operations Policy and Planning Committee members: Elaine 

Leonard (Chair), Rob Paynter, Angie Hentze , Ann Whiteaker, 

Jordan Watters (ex officio) 

 Education Policy and Directions Committee members: 

Nicole Duncan 

 

Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, 

Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin 

Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate 

Superintendent, Katrina Stride, Associate Secretary-Treasurer, 

Andy Canty, Director, Information Technology for Learning, 

Chuck Morris, Director of Facilities Services, Jim Soles, 

Associate Director, Facilities Services, Marni Vistisen-Harwood, 

Manager, Capital Planning and Implementation, Facilities 

Services, Kelly Gorman, Recorder 

  

Stakeholders: Kristil Hammer, President, VCPAC, Mark Morrison, Second VP 

& Health & Safety Officer, GVTA, Connor McCoy, President, 

VPVPA 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Page 233 of 308



 

 2 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.  

A.1 Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 

Chair Leonard recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and 

Songhees Nations, on whose traditional territories we live, we learn, and 

we do our work.  

A.2 Approval of the Agenda 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the June 14, 2021 Operations Policy and Planning Committee 

meeting agenda be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

NOTE: Due to internet connectivity Chair Leonard passed the gavel to Trustee Watters 

to Chair the remainder of the meeting. 

A.3 Approval of the Minutes 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the May 10, 2021 Operations Policy and Planning Committee 

meeting minutes be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

A.4 Business Arising from Minutes 

B. PRESENTATIONS TO THE COMMITTEE 

 None 

C. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 

C.1 Recycling Soft Plastic 

Superintendent Green provided information relative to the motion. 

Trustees had questions of clarification.  

Moved by Trustee Hentze 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) re-

establish green teams in every school who will work with facilities to create 

Page 234 of 308



 

 3 

a process where the green teams categorize and weigh soft plastics once 

a week. This information will be collected by Mark Baggott in facilities and 

recommendations will be made in the spring of 2021-2022 on how to 

reduce waste of soft plastics.  

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Duncan 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to re-establish green teams in every school 

who will work with facilities to create a process where the green teams 

categorize and weigh soft plastics once a week. This information will be 

collected by Mark Baggott in facilities and recommendations will be made 

in the spring of 2021-2022 on how to reduce waste of soft plastics.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Paynter 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to investigate re-establishing green teams in 

every school who will work with facilities to create a process where the 

green teams categorize and weigh soft plastics once a week. This 

information will be collected by Mark Baggott in facilities and 

recommendations will be made in the spring of 2021-2022 on how to 

reduce waste of soft plastics.  

For (1): Trustee Paynter 

Against (4): Trustee Leonard, Trustee Hentze, Trustee Whiteaker, and 

Trustee Watters 

Motion Defeated (1 to 4) 

 

Chair Watters called for the vote on the motion as amended. 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to re-establish green teams in every school who 

will work with facilities to create a process where the green teams 

categorize and weigh soft plastics once a week. This information will be 

collected by Mark Baggott in facilities and recommendations will be made 

in the spring of 2021-2022 on how to reduce waste of soft plastics.  

Page 235 of 308



 

 4 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

D. PERSONNEL ITEMS 

E. FINANCE AND LEGAL AFFAIRS 

E.1 Policy Sub-Committee Report 

a. Draft New Policy 1330.1 - Child Care Providers - Feedback 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris provided an update to Trustees on the 

draft policy feedback received and the new Order in Council. 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris advised the Policy Sub-Committee 

would re-convene to discuss the updated changes. Trustees had 

questions of clarification.  

E.2 Monthly Financial Report - May 2021 

Secretary-Treasurer Morris presented the report to Trustees. There were 

no questions.  

F. FACILITIES PLANNING 

F.1 Operations Update: June 2021 

Director of Facilities Morris presented the report to Trustees. Questions of 

clarification were asked. Trustee Paynter requested information relative to 

air quality at Spectrum Secondary school now that the new McKenzie 

overpass is operational.  

F.2 Annual Five Year Capital Plan  

Secretary-Treasurer Morris provided an overview to Trustees. Trustees 

had questions of clarification.  

G. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS 

None 

H. NEW BUSINESS 

H.1 Working Committee and Consultation on Compost and Waste - 

Trustee Whiteaker 

Trustee Whiteaker provided rationale for the motion. Trustees, 

stakeholders and staff debated the motion.  

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

Page 236 of 308



 

 5 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to oversee the creation of a Working Committee 

and consultation process, as outlined in Bylaw 9210, to prepare a draft 

Compost and Waste policy proposal to ensure consistent practices and 

supports across the district which are in alignment with our environmental 

values and goals. 

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Watters 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to oversee the creation of a Working Committee 

and consultation process, as outlined in Bylaw 9210, to prepare a draft 

Compost and Waste policy proposal to ensure consistent practices and 

supports across the district which are is in alignment with our 

environmental values and goals.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Chair Watters called for the vote on the motion as amended.  

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Watters 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to oversee the creation of a Working Committee 

and consultation process, as outlined in Bylaw 9210, to prepare a draft 

Compost and Waste policy proposal which is in alignment with our 

environmental values and goals.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

H.2 Climate Action Plan - Trustee Duncan 

Trustee Duncan provided rationale for the motion. Secretary-Treasurer 

Morris stated that the newly hired Climate and Energy Manager has 

commenced benchmarking and is establishing targets in order to reduce 

GHG emissions. 

Moved by Trustee Duncan 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to prepare a Climate Action Plan as directed by 

the Board in its motion of 24 June 2019, by September 2021 for 

Page 237 of 308



 

 6 

consideration by the Board and our stakeholders. Further the plan should 

establish measurable targets and strategies to reduce GHGs by 2030 

commensurate with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s call 

to limit warming to 1.5 degrees. The plan should also include funding 

options to support targets and strategies such as available rebates and 

government funding to meet sectoral targets set by the provincial 

government. 

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to prepare a Climate Action Plan as directed by 

the Board in its motion of 24 June 2019, by September 2021 for 

consideration by the Board and our stakeholders. Further the plan should 

establish measurable targets and strategies to reduce GHGs by 2030 

commensurate with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s call 

to limit warming to 1.5 degrees. The plan should also include funding 

options to support targets and strategies such as available rebates and 

government funding to meet sectoral targets set by the provincial 

government. 

For (4): Trustee Leonard, Trustee Hentze, Trustee Whiteaker, and Trustee 

Watters 

Against (1): Trustee Paynter 

Motion Carried (4 to 1) 

 

Amendment: 

Moved by Trustee Leonard 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to prepare a Climate Action Plan as directed by 

the Board in its motion of 24 June 2019, by September December 2021 

for consideration by the Board and our stakeholders. Further the plan 

should establish measurable targets and strategies to reduce GHGs by 

2030 commensurate with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 

Change’s call to limit warming to 1.5 degrees. The plan should also 

include funding options to support targets and strategies such as available 

rebates and government funding to meet sectoral targets set by the 

provincial government. 

Page 238 of 308



 

 7 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

Chair Watters called for a vote on the motion as amended. 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

direct the Superintendent to prepare a Climate Action Plan as directed by 

the Board in its motion of 24 June 2019, by December 2021 for 

consideration by the Board and our stakeholders.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

I. NOTICE OF MOTION 

None 

J. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None 

K. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 8:27 p.m.  

Moved by Trustee Whiteaker 

That the meeting adjourn. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 

 

   

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

   

 

Page 239 of 308



 

 

 

 

TO:  Board of Education 

FROM:  Trustee Whiteaker 

RE:  Compost and Waste Policy Working Committee 

DATE:  April 12, 2021 

Rationale (Issue): 
As we continue to acknowledge the climate emergency and the need to take action and make changes 
to the current unsustainable norms practised across the District and within our greater family 
community. As a system and as role models to our youth we must ensure that our practises and 
learning opportunities for students are in alignment with each other and with our values as a District.  
 
As a District we have repeatedly expressed our commitment and support for addressing the climate 
emergency and composting is vital in nourishing our soil for future harvests and in reducing harmful 
methane gases. Additionally, composting provides rich learning opportunities for students while also 
modelling sustainable practises, building good stewardship and social responsibility traits in our 
students and communities. 
 
While the District in the past has implemented composting opportunities in our schools the program has 
experienced several challenges and critiques around cleanliness, fruit flies and other insects, excess 
bin locations and lack of funding, creating additional work load on teachers as they attempted to 
minimize the insects and mess in their classrooms.  
 
How we identify and handle our waste in schools must model what we want or expect from society. 
While composting and minimizing our waste will not solve the climate crisis it is part of the solution and 
part of the mind shift we must all make as a society for the health of all future students. 
 
Alignment to Strategic Plan: 
 
This motion asks for a policy creation in alignment with Goal one and Goal three.  This motion will 
encourage engagement and collaboration with students, families and staff and support implementation 
of learning opportunities that will enhance student and community well being.   
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Education of SD 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to oversee the creation of a 
working committee and consultation process, as outlined in Bylaw 9210, to prepare a draft Compost and Waste 
policy proposal to ensure consistent practices and supports across the district which are in alignment with our 
environmental values and goals. 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112  

 
 

Page 240 of 308



 

 
 

 

 

TO:  Board of Education 

FROM:  Trustee Duncan 

RE:  Motion for OPPS   

DATE:  June 14, 2021 

 

Background: Since 2008 the School District of Greater Victoria No. 61 has been required to 
submit an annual Carbon Neutral Action Report. Previous reports can be found via the following 
url: 
 
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/environment/climate-change/public-sector/cnar/annual-
reports-cnars-table  

 
This reporting sets out our emission profile, the total offsets to reach net-zero emissions and the 
actions we have taken in the calendar year to offset our emissions in line with our obligations 
under the Climate Change Accountability Act and Carbon Neutral Government Regulation. The 
Climate Change Accountability Act section 6.1 sets out that:   

Public sector buildings and fleets 

6.1  A public sector organization must manage the risks to the public sector organization that 
could reasonably be expected to result from a changing climate and minimize the public sector 
organization's adverse environmental effects by complying with the prescribed requirements 
and achieving the prescribed targets respecting 

(a) buildings owned or leased by the public sector organization, 
(b) motor vehicles and other mobile combustion sources owned or leased by the public 
sector organization, and 
(c) the fuels used in or by the things referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b), that are owned 
or leased by the public sector organization, and the infrastructure used to dispense 
those fuels. 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112

Chair: Jordan Watters  Vice-Chair: Elaine Leonard 

   Trustees: Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze, 

        Diane McNally, Ryan Painter, Rob Paynter, Ann Whiteaker 

Page 241 of 308

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/environment/climate-change/public-sector/cnar/annual-reports-cnars-table
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/environment/climate-change/public-sector/cnar/annual-reports-cnars-table


 

 
 

 
 
In the 2019 Carbon Neutral Action Report, we set out that the Board of Education, “…clearly 
recognizes its role as a leader in environmental stewardship and will continue to support 
initiatives that will reduce energy consumption and reduce our impact on the environment.” 
(2019 Carbon Neutral Action Report, p. 3) In this report we also commit to posting the Carbon 
Neutral Action Report to our website by June 2020. 
 
School Districts are in an unique position to show leadership in mitigating and adapting to 
address the impacts of climate change. We are a member of the public sector with responsibility 
to both manage our resources such as our buildings and infrastructure in an environmentally 
sustainable manner, and to support an environmental ethic including the importance of 
sustainability in our educational programs. 
 

Rationale:  
 
On June 24, 2019 through the passing of a motion of the Board we declared a Climate 
Emergency and directed the Superintendent to develop a Climate Change Action Plan with 
specific objectives and measurements that are in alignment with the United Nation’s 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). It is now just days to the 2nd anniversary 
of this declaration and the Board and school community has yet to see a concrete plan with 
measurable targets and goals. What is the plan for reducing our GHGs and how will that be 
achieved to keep us to below 1.5 degrees of global warming as laid out by the IPCC? 
 
Recently the provincial government updated its’ requirement for GHG reductions in buildings 
with sectoral targets. Sectoral GHG targets have been established for 2030 in transportation, 
industry, oil and gas, and buildings and communities. Sectoral GHG targets for 2030 are 
expressed as a percentage reduction from 2007 sector emissions. Target ranges for each 
sector are as follows: 
 

 Transportation- 27 to 32%; 

 Industry- 38 to 43%; 

 Oil and gas- 33 to 38%; and 

 Buildings and communities- 59 to 64%. 
 
Sectoral targets were established based on emissions modelling done by the Climate Action 
Secretariat and input from engagement with stakeholders and partners. 
https://news.gov.bc.ca/releases/2021ENV0022-000561  
 
The Province has launched a new round of applications for emission reduction projects for 2021 
through the CleanBC Industry Fund with temporary changes to increase the provincial share of 
funding up to 90% of project costs with a cap of $25 million per project to encourage a greater 

number of proposals. However, to be eligible for funding through the CleanBC Industry Fund, 

applicants must have emissions over 10,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent per year. 
https://news.gov.bc.ca/releases/2021ENV0022-000561  
 

Page 242 of 308

https://news.gov.bc.ca/releases/2021ENV0022-000561
https://news.gov.bc.ca/releases/2021ENV0022-000561


 

 
 

Our School District’s most recent Carbon Neutral Report un June 2019 reports 4,868 tonnes of 
carbon dioxide equivalent were emitted during the annual reporting period. Therefore, as it 
stands we are not eligible for the new funding available to support sectoral targets. 
 
Clean energy retrofits funded by the province could solve some of the budgetary challenges 
faced by school districts who should not be forced to sell assets in order to fund retrofits. It is a 
moral imperative that the Board act swiftly on climate change. We need a plan and we need to 
monitor the implementation of that plan. Our School District was one of the first School Board’s 
in Canada to declare a climate emergency. We need to show our learning community and the 
country that this wasn't just hollow words. 
 
The proposed motion supports the Board’s Environment Policy 3324 which includes a 
commitment to environmental management through considering the environmental impact in the 
planning of all operational and educational programs and to working with community and 
government agencies to support good environmental practices. 
 
The proposed motion also supports the Board’s Energy, Environment and Climate Change 
Policy 4216.22 which states, “The Board of Education takes it as its responsibility to ensure that 
every effort is made to conserve energy and resources in order to reduce the District’s carbon 
foot print. This requires an ongoing, integrated and systematic approach to energy 
management, including assessing performance, setting goals, creating an action plan, and 
tracking and communicating results. Greenhouse emission reduction is the joint responsibility of 
the trustees, administrators, staff, and students. Every employee is expected to be cognizant of 
their energy use and contribute to energy efficiencies.”  
 

Alignment to Strategic Plan:  
 
The proposed motion aligns with all goals of the Strategic Plan. At the core of the proposed 
motion is a clear commitment to our District’s Strategic Plan and the core values expressed in 
that plan of sustainability, social responsibility, innovation, openness and transparency. In June 
2019 our Board recognized that the breakdown of the stable climate and sea level under which 
human life has developed constitutes an emergency. We know that we must take action to 
mitigate and adapt to address climate change. The action directed in the motion is intended to 
support ongoing climate accountability.  

 
Recommended motion: 
 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the 

Superintendent to prepare a Climate Action Plan as directed by the Board in its motion of 24 

June 2019, by September 2021 for consideration by the Board and our stakeholders. Further 

the plan should establish measurable targets and strategies to reduce GHGs by 2030 

commensurate with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s call to limit warming to 

1.5 degrees. The plan should also include funding options to support targets and strategies 

such as available rebates and government funding to meet sectoral targets set by the provincial 

government.  

Page 243 of 308



 
 
 
 
 
 

TO: The Board of Education 
 
FROM: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools 
 
RE: Superintendent’s Report 
     
DATE: June 21, 2021 
 
 
There are a number of items that the Superintendent wishes to bring to the attention of 
the Board of Education. 
 
Events and Meetings 
The Superintendent has attended a number of events and met with a number of 
individuals since the last Board meeting.  These have included: 
 
• District Committees 

o Audit Committee 
 
• Meetings and Events 

o Professional Conversations 
 
• Meetings 

o BCSSA Island Chapter 
o Generative Dialogue/Coaching 
o Island Health 
o Joint Committee (GVTA) 
o Ministry of Education Updates 
o Principal Interviews 
o Professional Relations Committee (GVTA) 
o Principals and Vice-Principals 
o Totem Raising  
o Tri-District Superintendents 
o VPVPA 

 
 
Recommended Motion: That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) accept the Superintendent’s Report, as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4162   Fax (250) 475-4112 Shelley Green - Superintendent 

 

Office of the 
Superintendent 

Page 244 of 308



 
 
 
 
 
 

TO: The Board of Education 
 
FROM: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools 
 
RE: Response to Trustee Queries  
     
DATE: June 21, 2021 
 
 
 Requested 

Contingency Plan for the COVID Pandemic for September 
 

 
The Ministry of Education will provide updates for planning in June and mid-August.   

There will be updates for the Provincial Health and Safety Guidelines. 

 

 

 

 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4162   Fax (250) 475-4112 Shelley Green - Superintendent 

 

Office of the 
Superintendent 

Page 245 of 308



 

 

 Requested 
Trustee Governance and Behavior Support 
 

 
 

 
 Requested 

BAA Aviation Maintenance Course (12BAA) 
 

• Approved in January 2021 
• Will be implemented in February 2022 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Page 246 of 308



 

 

 

 
 
 

 

TO: The Board of Education 
 
FROM: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools 
 
RE: 2021/2022 Board of Education & Standing Committee Meeting Dates  
 
DATE: June 21, 2021 
 
 

Education Policy 
and Directions  

Operations Policy and 
Planning Committee Board of Education 

Monday, Sept. 13/21  
 

Monday, Sept. 20/21 Monday, Sept. 27/21 
 

Monday, Oct. 4/21 
 

Monday, Oct. 18/21 
 

Monday, Oct. 25/21 

Monday, Nov.1/21 
 

Monday, Nov. 8/21 
 

Monday, Nov. 22/21 

Monday, Dec. 6/21 
(combined with OPPS) 
 

Monday, Dec. 6/21 
(combined with Ed) 

Monday, Dec. 13/21 

Monday, Jan. 10/22 
 

Monday, Jan. 17/22 
 

Monday, Jan. 24/22 

Monday, Feb. 7/22 
 

Monday, Feb. 14/22 
 

Monday, Feb. 28/22 
 

Monday, Mar. 7/22 
(combined with OPPS) 

Monday, Mar. 7/22 
(combined with Ed) 
 

Monday, Mar. 14/22 

Monday, Apr. 4/22 
 

Monday, Apr. 11/22 Monday, Apr. 25/22 
 

Monday, May 2/22 
 

Monday, May 9/22 Monday, May 30/22 
 

Monday, June 6/22 
 

Monday, June 13/22 Monday, June 20/22 
 

 
Recommended Motion: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
2021/2022 Board of Education Proposed Dates and the Standing Committee meeting dates. 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4162   Fax (250) 475-4112 

Shelley Green - Superintendent 
 

Office of the 
Superintendent 

Page 247 of 308



 

 

 

TO:  Board of Education 

FROM: Kim Morris 

RE:  Monthly Report 

DATE:  June 21, 2021 

The purpose of this memo is to update the Board on some of the activities of the Secretary- 
Treasurer’s office since May’s report. 
 
 Facilities and Minor Capital Staff Weekly Meetings with Superintendent  
 Administrators Meeting 
 Human Resources Bi-Weekly Meetings 
 Victoria High School Seismic Project Bi-Weekly Meetings  
 Board and Committee meetings  
 District Allocation Working Group Meetings 
 BCASBO Leadership Cohort 
 Spectrum Turf and Rink Committee meeting 
 K-12 SOGI Collaborative representing BCASBO 
 Finance Team Monthly Meeting 
 Media re Budget 
 Independent Advisor Meetings re Budget 
 Audit Committee Meeting 

 
In addition to the activities above, I update the Board relative to the following: 
 
Childcare Announcements: 
Strawberry Vale Out of School Care (Victoria)  

School District 61 is partnering with the Richmond Out of School Care Society to add two portables on the school 
grounds of Strawberry Vale Elementary school. The portable will house 68 new licensed child care spaces, 
including 24 spaces for children aged three years to kindergarten, 20 preschool spaces and 24 school-age spaces, 
which are set to open in early 2023. Addressing a need for group child care spaces, this centre will help vulnerable 
people through programs like StrongStart BC, which is designed to support children through learning and play 
activities, story time and snacks. 

Victoria High Secondary (Victoria)  

School District 61 is partnering with Fernwood Neighbourhood Resource Group to create 36 new spaces in two 
portables on the grounds of Victoria High Secondary school. The centre will work with the Queen Alexandra Centre 
for Children’s Health to ensure children with diverse abilities are supported. Staff have also completed Indigenous 
Inclusion training and will provide pre- and post-natal programming to assist vulnerable families. The facility, which 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 Kim Morris  -  Secretary Treasurer 

Office of the 
Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 248 of 308



 

will offer 12 spaces for children aged three years to kindergarten and 24 school-age spaces, will open in early 
2023.  

 
 

Page 249 of 308



AGK 93981 2 1 

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 61 (GREATER VICTORIA) 

CALEDONIA COVENANT, RIGHT-OF-WAY, LAND EXCHANGE, PROPERTY ACQUISITION 
AND LEASE BYLAW 2021 

WHEREAS a board of education may dispose of land or improvements owned or administered 
by the board under the authority of Section 96(3) of the School Act, subject to the Orders of the 
Minister of Education (the “Minister”); 

AND WHEREAS the Minister issued Order M193/08 effective September 3, 2008 (the “Order”) 
requiring fee simple sales and leases of land or improvements for a term of ten years or more to 
be specifically approved by the Minister, unless the transferee is an independent school or 
another school board, but the Order does not require the Minister’s approval of a right-of-way or 
covenant; 

AND WHEREAS Section 65(5) of the School Act requires a board of education to exercise a 
power with respect to the acquisition or disposal of property only by bylaw, and the granting of a 
statutory right-of-way or a covenant is a disposal of an interest in land; 

AND WHEREAS:   

A. The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) (the “Board”) owns 
certain lands and improvements in Victoria (the “Board Lands”). 

B. The Board Lands include parcels designated by the following facility number: 105563. 

C. The addresses and legal descriptions of the parcels comprising the Board Lands are as 
follows: 

1. 1801 Chambers Street, Victoria, B.C. 
Parcel Identifier: 009-233-318 
Lot 1, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205 (“Lot 1”); 

 
2. 1805 Chambers Street, Victoria, B.C. 

Parcel Identifier: 009-233-334 
Lot 2, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205 (“Lot 2”); 

 
3. 1855 Chambers Street, Victoria, B.C. 

Parcel Identifier: 009-226-141 
Amended Lot 12 (DD 302067I), Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205  
(“Amended Lot 12”); 

 
4. 1216 North Park Street, Victoria, B.C. 

Parcel Identifier: 009-226-206 
Amended Lot 10 (DD 302066I), Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205  
(“Amended Lot 10”); 
 

5. 1211 Gladstone Avenue, Victoria, B.C. 
Parcel Identifier: 018-007-503 
Lot A, Section 53, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan VIP55528 (“Lot A”); 

 

Page 250 of 308



AGK 93981 3 2 

6. 1219 North Park Street, Victoria, B.C. 
Parcel Identifier: 009-226-338 
Lot 5, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205 (“Lot 5”); 

 
7. 1218 North Park Street, Victoria, B.C. 

Parcel Identifier: 009-226-214 
Lot 9, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205 (“Lot 9”); 

 
8. 1220 North Park Street, Victoria, B.C. 

Parcel Identifier: 009-226-231 
Lot 8, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205, Except Northerly 56 Feet Thereof (“Lot 
8”); 

 
9. 1219 Vining Street, Victoria, B.C. 

Parcel Identifier: 009-226-257 
The Northerly 56 Feet of Lot 8, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205  
(“Lot 8 Portion”); and 

 
10. 1226 North Park Street, Victoria, B.C. 

Parcel Identifier: 009-226-265 
Lot 7, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205 (“Lot 7”); 
 

11. Parcel Identifier: 009-851-844 
The North ½ of Section 54, Spring Ridge, Victoria City Except Parcel A (DD 5977I) 
and Except That Part Shown Coloured Red on Plan Exhibited in Absolute Fees 
Parcel Book, Volume 8, Folio 653, Numbered 303C  
(“North ½ Section 54”); and 
 

12. Parcel Identifier: 009-851-909 
That Part of Section 54, Spring Ridge, Victoria City Shown Coloured Red on Plan 
Exhibited in Absolute Fees Parcel Book, Volume 8, Folio 653, Numbered 303C  
(the “Section 54 Portion”).  

 
D. Lot 1, Lot 2, Amended Lot 12 and Amended Lot 10, are herein called the “Board 

Exchange Lands”; Lot A, Lot 5, Lot 9, Lot 8, the Lot 8 Portion and Lot 7 are herein 
called the “Board Development Lands”; and North ½ Section 54 and the Section 54 
Portion are herein called the “Greenway Encumbrance Lands”. 
 

E. The Board proposes to enter into the Caledonia Redevelopment Master Agreement (the 
“Master Agreement”) with Capital Region Housing Corporation (“CRHC”), the 
Corporation of the City of Victoria (the “City”) and Provincial Rental Housing Corporation 
(“PRHC”) pursuant to which CRHC will build and operate an affordable housing 
development (the “Development”) on lands owned by the Board and leased to CRHC, 
pursuant to the following proposed transactions as described in the Master Agreement: 

1. the Board would grant the following encumbrances against the Board Lands 
(collectively, the “Encumbrances”): 

Page 251 of 308



AGK 93981 3 3 

(a) a housing agreement pursuant to section 483 of the Local Government Act, 
substantially in the form attached to the Master Agreement, encumbering 
the Board Development Lands (the “Housing Agreement”); 

(b) a covenant under section 219 of the Land Title Act substantially in the form 
attached to the Master Agreement, encumbering the Board Development 
Lands (the “Greenway Covenant”); 

(c) a covenant under section 219 of the Land Title Act substantially in the form 
attached to the Master Agreement, encumbering the Board Development 
Lands (the “Gardens Covenant”); 

(d) a covenant under section 219 of the Land Title Act substantially in the form 
attached to the Master Agreement, encumbering the Board Development 
Lands (the “Turnaround Covenant”); 

(e) a covenant under section 219 of the Land Title Act substantially in the form 
attached to the Master Agreement, encumbering the Board Development 
Lands (the “Unit Mix and Accessibility Covenant”); 

(f) a statutory right-of-way for highway purposes substantially in the form 
attached to the Master Agreement, encumbering Amended Lot 12 as 
shown in Plan EPP103337, a reduced copy of which is attached to this 
Bylaw as Exhibit 1 (the “Vining Highway SRW”); 

(g) a statutory right-of-way for highway purposes substantially in the form 
attached to the Master Agreement, encumbering Lot 4, Lot 5 and Lot 6 as 
shown on Plan EPP103224, a reduced copy of which is attached to this 
Bylaw as Exhibit 2 (the “Grant Highway SRW”); and 

(h) a statutory right-of-way for greenway purposes substantially in the form 
attached to the Master Agreement, encumbering the Greenway 
Encumbrance Lands as shown in Plan EPP103223, a reduced copy of 
which is attached to this Bylaw as Exhibit 3 (the “Greenway SRW”); 

2. PRHC would grant a statutory right-of-way for turnaround purposes substantially 
in the form attached to the Master Agreement, encumbering Lot 4 (defined below) 
as shown in Plan EPP103338, a reduced copy of which is attached to this Bylaw 
as Exhibit 4 (the “Turnaround SRW”); 

3. the Board would enter into a land exchange agreement with the City substantially 
in the form attached to the Master Agreement (the “Land Exchange Agreement”), 
and pursuant to the Land Exchange Agreement the Board would transfer the Board 
Exchange Lands to the City in exchange (the “Exchange”) for the following lands 
and improvements (collectively, the “City Exchange Lands”): 

(a) 1235 Caledonia Avenue, Victoria, B.C. 
Parcel Identifier: 017-710-545 
Lot 18, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205 (“Lot 18”); 

Page 252 of 308



AGK 93981 3 4 

(b) 1230 Grant Street, Victoria, B.C. 
Parcel Identifier: 009-226-290 
Lot 6, Section 50, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205 (“Lot 6”); and 

(c) That portion of Vining Street having an area of approximately 277.5 
square meters and that portion of North Park Street having an area of 
approximately 556.0 square meters labelled “Closed Road” in Reference 
Plan EPP88785, a reduced copy of which is attached to this Bylaw as 
Exhibit 5 (the “Closed Roads”); 

4. the Board would enter into a purchase contract with PRHC substantially in the 
form attached to the Master Agreement (the “Purchase Contract”) pursuant to 
which PRHC will sell the following lands and improvements to the Board on the 
terms and conditions set out in the Purchase Contract (the “Lot 4 Purchase”): 

1209 North Park Street, Victoria, B.C. 
PID: 005-002-443 
Lot 4, Spring Ridge, Victoria City, Plan 205 (“Lot 4”); 

5. the City would rezone (the “Rezoning”) the Board Development Lands, Lot 4 and 
the City Exchange Lands (collectively, the “Development Lands”) to permit the 
Development; 

6. the Board would subdivide and consolidate the Development Lands (the 
“Consolidation”) to form a single parcel owned by the Board as shown in 
reference plan EPP88786, a reduced copy of which is attached hereto as  
Exhibit 6 (the “Proposed Consolidation Plan”); 

7. the Board would grant a construction license substantially in the form attached to 
the Master Agreement (the “License”) pursuant to which the Board would grant 
CRHC the right to construct the Development on the Development Lands for a 
license fee of $4,300,000; and 

8.  the Board would enter into a lease (the “Lease”), substantially in the form 
attached to the Master Agreement, pursuant to which the Board would lease the 
Development Lands to CRHC for sixty-two years for $1.00. 

F. The Board is satisfied that it would be in the best interests of the Board to enter into the 
Master Agreement and pursuant to its obligations thereunder grant the Encumbrances, 
enter into the Land Exchange Agreement and complete the Exchange, enter into the 
Purchase Contract and complete the Lot 4 Purchase, complete the Rezoning and 
Consolidation of the Development Lands, enter into and grant the License, and enter into 
and grant the Lease to CRHC (collectively, the “Transactions”).  

G. The Board is satisfied that the granting of the Encumbrances will not interfere with the use 
by the Board of the Greenway Encumbrance Lands for educational purposes. 

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved as a Bylaw of the Board that the Master Agreement and the 
Transactions be and are hereby authorized, ratified and approved. 

Page 253 of 308



AGK 93981 3 5 

BE IT FURTHER resolved that the Secretary-Treasurer be and is hereby authorized on behalf of 
the Board to execute and deliver the Master Agreement and all documents required to complete 
the Transactions including, without limitation, the Housing Agreement, the Greenway Covenant, 
the Gardens Covenant, the Turnaround Covenant, the Unit Mix and Accessibility Covenant, the 
Vining Highway SRW, the Grant Highway SRW, the Greenway SRW, the Land Exchange 
Agreement, the Purchase Contract, the Proposed Consolidation Plan, the License and the Lease, 
and all such amendments thereto as the Secretary-Treasurer may, in her discretion, consider 
advisable, and all related and ancillary documents required to complete the Transactions.  

This Bylaw may be cited as “School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) Caledonia Covenant, Right-
of-Way, Land Exchange, Property Acquisition and Lease Bylaw 2021”. 

Read a first time this ____ day of June, 2021. 

Read a second time this ____ day of June, 2021. 

Read a third time this ____ day of June, 2021, and finally passed and adopted this ____ day of 
June, 2021. 

 
    
  Chairperson of the Board 
 
 Corporate Seal 
     
   Secretary-Treasurer 
 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) Caledonia 
Covenant, Right-of-Way, Land Exchange, Property Acquisition and Lease Bylaw, adopted by the 
Board the ____ day of June, 2021. 
 
 
    
  Secretary-Treasurer

Page 254 of 308



AGK 93981 2 6 

EXHIBIT 1 
VINING HIGHWAY SRW PLAN 

 

Page 255 of 308



AGK 93981 3 7 

EXHIBIT 2 
GRANT HIGHWAY SRW PLAN 

 

Page 256 of 308



AGK 93981 3 8 

EXHIBIT 3 
GREENWAY SRW PLAN 

 

Page 257 of 308



AGK 93981 3 9 

EXHIBIT 4 
TURNAROUND SRW PLAN

 

Page 258 of 308



AGK 93981 3 10 

EXHIBIT 5 
ROAD CLOSURE PLAN 

 

Page 259 of 308



AGK 93981 3 11 

EXHIBIT 6 
PROPOSED CONSOLIDATION PLAN 

 

Page 260 of 308



Page 261 of 308



DRAFT 5-Year Capital Plan 
2022-2023

Operations Policy & Planning Meeting

June 14, 2020

Presenters:  Chuck Morris, Jim Soles, Marni Vistisen-Harwood

Page 262 of 308



DRAFT Planning Principles
1. Safety

2. Enrolment & Capacity

3. Existing Building Condition

4. Climate 

5. Funding Categories Available

Page 263 of 308



• Used to maintain assets that are not minor or major capital 
threshold

– 41 projects

DRAFT Annual Facilities Grant 2021-2022

Page 264 of 308



• Used to increase capacity

– 1 Projects
• Sundance Elementary

– Increase capacity to 200

DRAFT Additions 2022-2023

Page 265 of 308



• Used to add new space to the District

– 1 Project:
• Site acquisition and construction of downtown Victoria Elementary School

DRAFT New School 2022-2023

Page 266 of 308



• Used to seismically upgrade existing school to mitigate seismic 
risk

– 6 Projects
• Sundance Upgrade 3 blocks

• James Bay Upgrade 1 block

• Reynolds Upgrade 7 blocks

• Northridge Upgrade 4 blocks

• McKenzie Upgrade 3 blocks

• Victoria West Upgrade 3 blocks

• NOTE:  Awaiting response from Nations re:  placement of Shoreline/Craigflower
TBD

DRAFT Seismic 2022-2023

Page 267 of 308



• Used to renovate or upgrade buildings that are not big enough 
for major capital but bigger than AFG can manage

– 6 Projects
• South Park – Roofing - Replacement Phase 1

• Strawberry Vale – Exterior Walls Systems - Siding replacement Phase 1

• Victoria High – Exterior Wall Systems – Window Replacement Phase 2

• Victoria High – HVAC – Mechanical Upgrade Phase 2

• Mount Douglas – Exterior Wall Systems – Window Upgrade Phase 5

• Esquimalt High – HVAC - Dust Collection System Woodshop

DRAFT School Enhancement Program 

2022-2023

Page 268 of 308



• Used to improve carbon neutrality 

– 5 Projects
• Sundance  - HVAC – replace unit ventilators

• Spectrum – Energy - Upgrade DDC to Reliable Controls

• Doncaster – HVAC – replace air handling units

• Lambrick Park – HVAC - Boiler replacement

• Lambrick Park – Energy - Upgrade DDC to Reliable Controls

DRAFT CNCP Intake 2022-2023

Page 269 of 308



• Used to add or replace playground equipment that may have 
previously fallen to PACs to fundraise

– 3 Projects (all universally accessible playgrounds)
• Macaulay - replacement

• Hillcrest - replacement

• Sundance - new

DRAFT Playground Enhancement Program 
2022-2023 

Page 270 of 308



Existing 

Facility?

VFA Requirement 

#

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Report run: Friday, June 11, 2021

Run By: # Marni Vistisen-Harwood

Submission Summary

Submission Summary: AFG 2021/2022 | 2021-06-30

Submission Category Sum Total Project Cost

Submission Type: Expenditure Plan

AFG $4,086,641

School District: Greater Victoria (SD61)

Total $4,086,641

AFG

Project Number Facility/Site Project Type SD Project ID Project Description Total Project Cost

Open Date: 2021-05-20

Close Date: 2021-06-30

Submission Status: Draft

$75,000

152403 Board Office Electrical Lighting Upgrade $30,000

152405 Arbutus Global Middle School Electrical Fire Panel Upgrade

$200,000

152394 Campus View Elementary Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications $15,000

152373 Campus View Elementary Site Upgrades Site Improvements to pathways and exterior paint

$60,000

152411 Cloverdale Traditional Elementary Site Upgrades Asphalt Repair $100,000

152406 Cloverdale Traditional Elementary Electrical Fire Panel Upgrade

$25,000

152397 Colquitz Middle School Electrical Lighting Upgrade $60,000

152380 Colquitz Middle School Electrical Security System Renewal

$250,000

152410 Colquitz Middle School Site Upgrades Field Repairs and imrovements $150,000

152409 Colquitz Middle School Site Upgrades Site improvements for the new busses arrival

$40,000

152384 Doncaster Elementary Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications $15,000

152398 Craigflower Elementary Electrical Lighting Upgrades

$50,000

152388 Ecole Willows Elementary Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications $10,000

152374 Ecole Macaulay Elementary Site Upgrades Pathway improvements

$110,000

152386 Frank Hobbs Elementary Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications $15,000

152407 Esquimalt High Electrical Fire Panel Upgrade

$25,000

152392 George Jay Elementary Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications $10,000

152400 Frank Hobbs Elementary Electrical Lighting Upgrade

$25,000

152390 Hillcrest Elementary Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications $10,000

152382 Glanford Middle School Electrical Security System Renewal

 Source: CAPS Page 1 of 2
Page 271 of 308



Report run: Friday, June 11, 2021

Run By: # Marni Vistisen-Harwood

Submission Summary

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

Yes

$750,000

152378 James Bay Community Electrical Security System Renewal $25,000

152375 James Bay Community Roofing Roof Replacements - 2 ply -areas 5,6, 7 and 4a

$45,000

152381 Mckenzie Elementary Electrical Security System Renewal $25,000

152399 Maintenance Facility Electrical Lighting Upgrade

$10,000

152391 Rockheights Middle School Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications $10,000

152389 Mckenzie Elementary Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications

$20,000

152376 S.J. Willis Roofing Roof Replacement of areas 5, 6a, 6b, 6c, 6c, 6e 

and restoration of 6d

$725,000

152385 Rogers Elementary Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications

$90,000

152387 Shoreline Community Middle School Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications $15,000

152372 Shoreline Community Middle School Roofing Flood Coat and gravel for area 9 roof

$25,000

152408 South Park Family School Interior Construction Carpet removal in den area $50,000

152379 South Park Family School Electrical Security System Renewal

$30,000

152402 Strawberry Vale Elementary Electrical Lighting Upgrade $50,000

152383 Spectrum Community School Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications

$400,000

152431 Sundance Elementary - Leased To Sd93 

Ecole Beausoleil Sundance

Interior Construction Classroom improvements $31,641

152377 Sundance Elementary - Leased To Sd93 

Ecole Beausoleil Sundance

Roofing Roof replacement of areas 1 and 2 - 2 ply

$25,000

152395 Various Facilities Asbestos Abatement Asbestos Abatement $100,000

152404 Uplands Elementary Electrical Lighting Upgrade

$350,000

152401 Victoria High Electrical Lighting Upgrade (Fairy Tec shop area) $20,000

152396 Various Facilities Electrical Wood and Metal Shop upgrades at all middle and 

secondary schools

$15,000

Submission Category Total: $4,086,641

152393 View Royal Elementary Electrical Improvements to Telecommunications

 Source: CAPS Page 2 of 2
Page 272 of 308



SD Category 

Rank

Facility/Site

1 Sundance Elementary

  

SD Category 

Rank

Facility/Site

1 New Downtown Victoria School

SD Category 

Rank

Facility/Site

1 Sundance Elementary

2 James Bay Community

3 Reynolds Secondary

4 Northridge Elementary

5 Mckenzie Elementary

6 Victoria West Elementary150473 Upgrade Seismic Upgrade of 3 H1 Blocks $4,426,157

Submission Category Total: $51,131,090

150419 Upgrade Seismic Upgrade of 4 H1 Blocks $10,267,226

150409 Upgrade Seismic Upgrade of 1 H1 Block, 1 H2 Block and 1 H3 Block $4,426,157

150380 Upgrade Seismic upgrade of 1 H1 Block $2,780,494

150443 Upgrade Seismic Upgrade of 7 H1 Blocks $25,135,065

Project Number Project Type Project Description Total Project Cost

150466 Upgrade Seismic Upgrade of 3 H1 Blocks $4,095,991

Submission Category Total: $20,055,057

SEISMIC

Project Number Project Type Project Description Total Project Cost

150203 New Proposed New 350 Capacity K-5 School in Vic High Catchment Area $20,055,057

Submission Category Total: $4,762,000

NEW SCHOOL

150126 Addition Increase capacity to 200 $4,762,000

    

Submission Status: Draft

ADDITION
Project Number Project Type Project Description Total Project Cost

Open Date: 2021-05-27

Seismic $51,131,090

Close Date: 2021-07-31

Total $75,948,147

Report run: Friday, June 11, 2021

Run By: # Marni Vistisen-Harwood

Submission Summary

Submission Summary: Major 2022/2023 | 2021-07-31

Submission Category Sum Total Project Cost

Submission Type: Capital Plan

Addition $4,762,000

School District: Greater Victoria (SD61)

New School $20,055,057

 Source: CAPS Page 1 of 1
Page 273 of 308



SD Category 

Rank

Facility/Site

1 Sundance Elementary

2 Spectrum Community School

3 Doncaster Elementary

4 Lambrick Park Secondary

5 Lambrick Park Secondary

SD Category 

Rank

Facility/Site

1 Ecole Macaulay Elementary

2 Hillcrest Elementary

3 Sundance Elementary

SD Category 

Rank

Facility/Site

1 South Park Family School

2 Strawberry Vale Elementary

3 Victoria High

4 Victoria High

5 Mount Douglas Secondary

6 Esquimalt High

Open Date: 2021-05-28

PEP $495,000

Close Date: 2021-09-30

Total $7,895,000

Report run: Friday, June 11, 2021

Run By: # Marni Vistisen-Harwood

Submission Summary

Submission Summary: Minor 2022/2023 | 2021-09-30

Submission Category Sum Total Funding 

RequestedSubmission Type: Capital Plan

CNCP $2,350,000

School District: Greater Victoria (SD61)

SEP $5,050,000

153612 HVAC Replace original 1969 Unit Ventilators that are at the end of their life and upgrade 

school's DDC system.  Replacement of these units and upgrading the DDC will save 

$700,000

151403 Energy Upgrade the DDC to a Reliable system - Good portion of the school on pneumatic 

and all needs to be upgraded and replaced with a walker system.  This will have 

$350,000

Submission Status: Draft

CNCP
Project Number Project Type Project Description Total Funding 

Requested

151405 Energy Upgrade the DDC to a reliable system - Good portion of the school on pneumatic 

and all needs to be upgraded and replaced with a walker system. This will have 

$400,000

Submission Category Total: $2,350,000

151402 HVAC Replace the original AHU that serve four classrooms and replace with unit 

ventilators.  The original units are over 80 years old and are at the end of their life 

$300,000

151404 HVAC Replace existing boilers with new energy efficient units.  New units will save 

significantly on GHG and energy.

$600,000

153617 Replacement School has an old wooden playground that is nearing end of life.  Like to replace 

with an accessible playground so students of all abilities in the school and 

$165,000

153613 Replacement Hillcrest has a small older playground that is not accessible.  Like to replace this 

with an accessible playground for students of all abilities.  The school has many 

$165,000

PEP
Project Number Project Type Project Description Total Funding 

Requested

SEP
Project Number Project Type Project Description Total Funding 

Requested

153623 New Sundance will be expanding significantly.  They have one playground that is not 

accessible.  Like to install a new playground that is accessible for the school and 

$165,000

Submission Category Total: $495,000

153607 Exterior Wall Systems Window Replacement , Phase 2 of 2  Work associated with the Vic High Seismic 

Upgrade and Addition Project  Improved comfort, lower energy costs, lower 

$1,100,000

151687 HVAC Mechanical Upgrade Phase 2 of 2.  Work Associated with the Vic High Seismic 

Upgrade and Addition Project.  Replace obsolete steam plant and equipment, 

$850,000

151681 Roofing Roof Replacement - Phase 1 of an historic slate roof. Roof is starting to leak in 

many places and slate has fallen off in the past causing safety issues.  Roof 

$1,500,000

153610 Exterior Wall Systems Phase 1 -Replace exterior siding that is rotting and causing significant maintenance 

issues. 

$450,000

Submission Category Total: $5,050,000

153628 Exterior Wall Systems Phase 5 of the window upgrade $450,000

153608 HVAC Upgrade the dust collector at Esq Woodshop to ensure collector is sized correctly 

and fire damping is installed

$700,000

 Source: CAPS Page 1 of 1
Page 274 of 308



 
 
 

 

 

 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 

Kim Morris – Secretary-Treasurer 

Office of the 
Secretary-Treasurer 

TO:  Board of Education 

FROM:  Kim Morris, Secretary-Treasurer 

DATE:  June 21, 2021 

RE:  Audit Committee Report – June 14, 2021 Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background: 
 

The Audit Committee held a meeting on June 14, 2021. KPMG presented the Audit Planning Report for the 
2020-2021 fiscal year. New business included discussion of the 2020-2021 School Accounting Records 
Review. 
 
There is one recommendation to the Board from the Audit Committee.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
2020-2021 Audit Planning Report 
 

Lenora Lee, Engagement Partner, accompanied by Sarah Burden, Audit Senior Manager, of KPMG presented 
the Audit Planning Report for 2020-2021. Trustees recommended the Audit Planning Report be approved by 
the Board. 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the Audit Planning 
Report for 2020-2021 as presented by KPMG to the Audit Committee. 

 

Page 275 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 1 

 kpmg 

School District No. 61  
(Greater Victoria) 
Audit Planning Report for the year ending June 30, 2021 

Prepared for presentation on June 14, 2021 

kpmg.ca/audit 

Page 276 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 1 

Table of contents 
Executive summary 2 

Audit and financial reporting impacts of COVID-19 3 

Audit risks 4 

Areas of focus for financial reporting 5 

Materiality 8 

New auditing standard 9 

How do we deliver audit quality? 10 

Key deliverables and milestones 11 

Appendices 12 

The contacts at KPMG in connection  
with this report are: 

Lenora Lee 
Audit Engagement Partner 
Tel: 250.480.3588 
lenoramlee@kpmg.ca 

Sarah Burden 
Audit Senior Manager 
Tel: (250) 480-3562 
sburden1@kpmg.ca 

This Audit Planning Report should not be used 
for any other purpose or by anyone other than 
the Audit Committee, Board of Trustees, and 
Management of the Entity. KPMG shall have no 
responsibility or liability for loss or damages or 
claims, if any, to or by any third party as this 
Audit Planning Report has not been prepared 
for, and is not intended for, and should not be 
used by, any third party or for any other 
purpose. At KPMG, we are passionate about earning your trust. We take deep 

personal accountability, individually and as a team, to deliver 
exceptional service and value in all our dealings with you. 

At the end of the day, we measure our success from the only 
perspective that matters – yours. 

Page 277 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 2 

Executive summary
Areas of focus for financial reporting 

Our audit of School District No. 61 (the “District”) is risk-focused. In planning our audit 
we have identified the following significant audit risks required by professional 
auditing standards: 

 Presumed risk of management override of controls 

We have also identified key areas of focus for financial reporting. These include: 

 Financial reporting impacts of COVID-19 
 Auditors’ Opinion - Compliance Framework 
 Procurement 
 Employee future benefits and salaries 
 School generated funds 
 Revenue and receivables 
 Executive expenses 
 Tangible capital assets 
See pages 5 to 7. 

Effective communication 

We are committed to transparent and thorough reporting of issues to management, 
the Audit Committee and the Board of Trustees. This is achieved through formal and 
informal meetings and communications throughout the year. If you have any 
comments you would like to bring to our attention, please contact Lenora Lee. See 
Appendix 1. 

Materiality 

Materiality has been determined based on total budgeted revenues. We have 
determined materiality to be $4.4 million for the year ending June 30, 2021 (2020 - 
$4.25 million).  

See page 8. 

Quality control and independence 

We are independent and have a robust and consistent system of quality control. We 
provide complete transparency on all services and follow the District’s approved 
protocols where required.  

See page 10. 

New accounting and auditing standards 

There are no new accounting standards effective for the District’s 2021 fiscal year. 

A new auditing standard, CAS 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related 
Disclosures, is effective for the District’s 2021 fiscal year.  

See page 9 for further details. 

Current developments 

Please refer to Appendix 3 for accounting and auditing changes relevant to the 
District. 

Page 278 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 3 

Audit and financial reporting impacts of COVID-19 
In March 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization. As the COVID-19 pandemic evolves, the District will 
continue to assess the impact on its operations and finances and consider the implications on financial reporting. We have analyzed the impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic situation on the audit of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 and discussed the audit and financial reporting implications 
with management.  

We provide the following information to describe the additional procedures that we will be performing. As the COVID-19 pandemic is a dynamic situation, we 
will continue to update our Audit Plan as the situation warrants. We will communicate any additional changes to our Audit Plan to the Audit Committee and 
Board of Trustees in our Audit Findings Report. 

Audit implications 

Considerations Audit implications 

Conducting the audit 
work 

 We plan to undertake a primarily remote audit again this year if recommended by Provincial health guidelines. We have established a secure 
ShareFile platform to facilitate the sharing of information with management. We have discussed the details of the audit with management, and 
we are ready to undertake the audit as planned and on schedule. The prior year audit was performed remotely. 

General 
considerations 

 We will obtain an understanding of what changes to process activities and controls have been implemented to determine if the planned audit 
procedures are appropriate. We have conducted preliminary discussions with management and will confirm our understanding of any 
significant changes by performing walkthroughs of transactions. 

Financial reporting  Currently, we expect that COVID-19 will continue to impact the District’s operations and finances beyond June 30, 2021. 
 An assessment should be made by management of any COVID-19 financial implications, for example delivery of education remotely, reduction 

in international student enrolment, work from home arrangements for employees, temporary or permanent staffing adjustments and receipt of 
additional safe return to school grants.  

 Significant actions undertaken by the District should be disclosed in a note to the financial statements, including a statement as to whether or 
not these factors present uncertainty over future cash flows, cause significant changes to assets and liabilities, and/or significantly impact 
future operations. Measurement of the estimated financial effect should be disclosed, or it should be stated if the effect is not determinable. 

 We will work with management to customize the wording of the COVID-19 related disclosures for the District’s specific situation. 
 Refer to our COVID‐19 Financial Reporting site. 

Page 279 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 4 

Audit risks  
Professional requirements Why is it significant? 

Fraud risk from revenue recognition There are generally pressures or incentives on management to commit fraudulent 
financial reporting through inappropriate revenue recognition when there is an 
expectation to maintain a balanced budget from year to year.  

We have determined the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition is not significant as 
there were no significant pressures or incentives identified related to revenue 
recognition and believe that the audit work performed on management override 
mitigates any residual risk. 

Fraud risk from management override of controls This is a presumed fraud risk. We have not identified any specific additional risks of 
management override relating to this audit. 

Our audit approach 

As the risk of management override is not rebuttable, our audit methodology incorporates the required procedures in professional standards to address this risk. These 
procedures include: 

 Testing of journal entries and other adjustments,  
 Performing a retrospective review of estimates, and  
 Evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual transactions. 

Inquiries required by professional standards 

Professional standards require that we obtain your view on the risk of fraud. We make similar inquiries to management as part of our planning process: 
 Are you aware of, or have you identified any instances of actual, suspected, possible, or alleged non-compliance of laws and regulations or fraud, including misconduct 

or unethical behavior related to financial reporting or misappropriation of assets? If so, have the instances been appropriately addressed and how have they been 
addressed? 

 What are your views about fraud risks in the entity? 
 How do you exercise effective oversight of management’s processes for identifying and responding to the risk of fraud in the entity and internal controls that 

management has established to mitigate these fraud risks? 
 Has the District entered into any significant unusual transactions, other than the items identified in this report? 

Page 280 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 5 

Areas of focus for financial reporting  
Areas of focus Why are we focusing here? Our audit approach 

Auditors’ Opinion - 
Compliance 
Framework  

Financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with appropriate financial 
statement framework. 

- The financial statements are prepared under Canadian Public Sector Accounting standards (“PSAS”),
supplemented by the requirements of Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the Province of
British Columbia Treasury Board.

- These regulations direct the District to apply PSAS, except in regard to accounting for restricted
contributions. Under the regulations, capital contributions are deferred and amortized on the same
basis as the amortization of the related tangible capital assets, not in accordance with the underlying
stipulations on the funding, as required under PSAS.

- As a result, the District’s revenue recognized in the statement of operations and certain related
deferred capital revenue would have been recorded differently under Canadian Public Sector
Accounting Standards.

˗ The Office of the Auditor General (“OAG”) has requested additional reporting, under the Group Auditor 
requirements, in order to perform the consolidation of the Provincial Accounts under the PSA 
standards. 

Procurement Completeness, existence and accuracy of 
procurement transactions and related 
expense, payable and prepaid accounts. 

Appropriate use of special purpose 
funding for intended programs. 

- Perform analytical procedures over services and supplies expense, by fund and function, with
expectation that actual expenses will not exceed or be less than budget within acceptable threshold.

- Substantive tests of details over appropriate existence, accuracy, classification and allocation of
expenses based on source documentation maintained.

Tangible capital 
assets 

Capital projects in process are accurately 
recorded and disclosed. 

Other significant capital projects and 
expenses are approved and accurately 
recorded (along with related funding). 

Ongoing evaluation of liability for 
contaminated sites for assets not in 
productive use. 

- Understand the approval and related review process for capital expenditures for consistency with
approved budgets and Ministry approval.

- Review processes in place to ensure that only capital purchases that are approved via the budget
process can be processed.

- Detailed testing of asset purchases and disposals and recalculation of the allocation of proceeds
between Ministry restricted funds and internally restricted District funds.

- Review agreements for contractual commitments and related disclosure requirements.

Page 281 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 6 

Areas of focus for financial reporting (continued)  
Areas of focus Why are we focusing here? Our audit approach 

Employee future 
benefits and 
salaries 

Employee future benefits obligation 
estimates are accurately recorded and 
presented. 

Salaries and related payroll liabilities are 
appropriately recognized and accurately 
recorded. 

Terms of new collective agreements are 
appropriately valued and recognized. 

- Control testing and process review of payroll procedures.

- Detailed testing and recalculation of salaries and benefits expense in accordance with collective
agreements including appropriate use of Classroom Enhancement Funds.

- Review of collective agreements for obligations by the District to provide benefits in the future.

- Review of assumptions and method used in estimating the liability for future employee benefits
including retrospective review of management’s previous estimates.

- Confirmation of reliance on actuarial valuation with Mercer.

- Review financial statement presentation to determine if it is consistent with applicable financial
reporting framework.

School generated 
funds 

Completeness and accuracy of school 
generated funds. 

Expenditures were incurred for the 
purposes intended. 

- Review processes and controls, including results of school audits performed, if any, and impact to the
accounting of school generated funds to understand potential risk areas.

- Use data and analytic techniques to identify and test audit risks.

- Review and assess the appropriateness of the District’s monitoring and authorization controls over
school generated fund collections and expenditures to assess the risk of misappropriation of such
funds, whether due to fraud or error, is mitigated.

Page 282 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 7 

Areas of focus for financial reporting (continued)  
Areas of focus Why are we focusing here? Our audit approach 

Revenue and 
receivables 

Accuracy, existence and completeness of 
funding from Ministry of Education and 
other sources, and fees, international 
student and tuition programs. 

- Obtain confirmation from Ministry of Education of funding received for the year and assess if it is
reported accurately between operating, special purpose and capital funds, including Classroom
Enhancement Funding and COVID-19 Safe return to school grants.

- Perform analytical review over fee revenues from other sources, including international student and
summer school programs.

- Understand and test one-time, non-recurring adjustments, including existence, accuracy and
presentation in the appropriate fund.

- Test receipt and use of Classroom Enhancement Funds (CEF) to determine if revenue collected is
accurate and has been used for its intended purpose based on funding restrictions.

- Substantive testing of CEF expenditures to determine if they are consistent with the terms of the
funding.

- Substantive testing of unspent funding to assess appropriateness of deferral (if applicable) in
accordance with related restrictions.

Executive 
expenses 

Completeness, existence and accuracy of 
executive expenses. 

- Substantive testing of expense reimbursements for compliance with policy and appropriate use of
public funds.

- Review the District’s executive expense reimbursement policy to ensure best practices have been
implemented.

Page 283 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 8 

Materiality 
Materiality is used to identify risks of material misstatements, develop an appropriate audit response to such risks, and evaluate the level at which we think 
misstatements will reasonably influence users of the financial statements. It considers both quantitative and qualitative factors. To respond to aggregation risk, 
we design our procedures to detect misstatements at a lower level of materiality. Professional standards require us to re-assess materiality at the completion 
of our audit based on period-end results or new information in order to confirm whether the amount determined for planning purposes remains appropriate. 

Materiality determination Comments Group amount 

Materiality Determined to plan and perform the audit and to evaluate the effects of identified misstatements on the audit 
and of any uncorrected misstatements on the financial statements.  

The corresponding amount for the prior year’s audit was $4.25 million 

$4.40 million 

Benchmark Based on budgeted revenues for the year. In the prior year, the previous period’s operating revenues were 
used as the benchmark. We have updated the benchmark used to account for possible fluctuations in results 
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The corresponding amount used for prior year’s benchmark for the 
audit was $243 million. 

$250 million 

% of Benchmark The corresponding percentage for the prior year’s audit was 1.75%. The industry standard percentage for the 
audit is 0.5% - 3.0%. 

1.76% 

Audit misstatement posting 
threshold 

Threshold used to accumulate misstatements identified during the audit. The corresponding amount for the 
previous year’s audit was $212.5 thousand. 

$220 thousand 

Materiality is used to scope the audit, identify risks of material misstatements and evaluate the level at which we think 
misstatements will reasonably influence users of the financial statements. It considers both quantitative and qualitative 
factors. 

To respond to aggregation risk, we design our procedures to detect misstatements at a lower level of materiality.  

Professional standards require us to re-assess materiality at the completion of our audit based on period-end results or new 
information in order to confirm whether the amount determined for planning purposes remains appropriate. 

We will report to the Audit Committee: 

Corrected audit misstatements 

Uncorrected audit misstatements 

Page 284 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 9 

New auditing standard  
Standard Overview Link 

CAS 540 Auditing Accounting 
Estimates and Related 
Disclosures 

The new standard is effective for the District’s 2021 fiscal year-end. 

Expected impact on the audit: 

˗ More emphasis on the need for exercising professional skepticism. 
˗ More granular risk assessment to address each of the components in an estimate (method, data, 

assumptions). 
˗ More granular audit response designed to specifically address each of the components in an estimate 

(method, data, assumptions). 
˗ More focus on how we respond to levels of estimation uncertainty. 
˗ More emphasis on auditing disclosures related to accounting estimates. 
˗ More detailed written representations required from management. 

We expect this new standard to impact our audit of the District’s estimate of the potential impairment of tangible 
capital assets, rates for amortization of tangible capital assets, and estimates used to determine employee 
future benefits.  

CPA Canada 
Client Briefing 

Page 285 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 10 

How do we deliver audit quality?  
Quality essentially means doing the right thing and remains our highest priority. Our Global Quality Framework outlines how we deliver quality and how every partner and staff 
member contributes to its delivery. 

 

Doing the right thing. Always.

‘Perform quality engagements’ sits at the core along with our 
commitment to continually monitor and remediate to fulfil on our quality 
drivers.  

Our quality value drivers are the cornerstones to our approach underpinned 
by the supporting drivers and give clear direction to encourage the right 
behaviours in delivering audit quality. 

We define ‘audit quality’ as being the outcome when: 

– audits are executed consistently, in line with the requirements and intent
of applicable professional standards within a strong system of quality
controls; and

– all of our related activities are undertaken in an environment of the utmost
level of objectivity, independence, ethics, and integrity.

Page 286 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 11 

Key deliverables and milestones 
April 2021 

July 2021 

Planning

Present 
audit 

planning 
report

Interim 
audit 
work

Year-end audit work

Present
audit 

findings
report and 

provide audit 
opinion

Release 
reporting 

package and 
subsequent 

events 
update to 

OAG
Ongoing communication 
with the Audit Committee, 

Board of Trustees and 
Management 

November 2021 

September 2021 

June 2021 

June 2021 

Page 287 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 12 

Appendices 

Appendices 

Appendix 1:  Required communications 

Appendix 2: KPMG’s audit approach and methodology 

Appendix 3: Current developments 

Page 288 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 13 

Appendix 1: Required communications 
Auditors’ report Engagement terms 

A copy of our draft auditors’ report setting out the conclusion of our audit will be 
provided at the completion of the audit. 

The objectives of the audit, our responsibilities in carrying out our audit, as well as 
management’s responsibilities, are set out in the engagement letter dated January 20, 
2021. 

Audit findings report  Representations of management 

At the completion of the audit, we will provide our findings report to the Audit 
Committee and Board of Trustees. 

We will obtain from management certain representations at the completion of the audit. 
In accordance with professional standards, a copy of the representation letter will be 
provided to the Audit Committee and Board of Trustees. 

Matters pertaining to independence Control deficiencies 

At the completion of our audit, we will re-confirm our independence to the Audit 
Committee and Board of Trustees. 

Control deficiencies identified during the audit will be communicated to management 
and the Audit Committee and Board of Trustees. 

Page 289 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 14 

Appendix 2: KPMG’s audit approach and methodology 
In future years, we will expand our use of technology in our audit through our new smart audit platform, 
KPMG Clara. 

Issue identification 
Continuous updates on audit 
progress, risks and findings before 
issues become events 

Data-driven risk assessment 
Automated identification of 
transactions with unexpected or 
unusual account combinations – 
helping focus on higher risk 
transactions and outliers 

Deep industry insights 
Bringing intelligence and clarity to 
complex issues, regulations and 
standards 

Analysis of complete populations 
Powerful analysis to quickly screen, 
sort and filter 100% of your journal 

entries based on high-risk attributes 

Reporting 
Interactive reporting of unusual patterns 
and trends with the ability to drill down 
to individual transactions 

Page 290 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 15 

Appendix 3: Current developments and audit trends 
Current Developments, created by the KPMG Public Sector and Not-for-Profit Practice, summarizes regulatory and governance matters impacting public 
sector entities today, or expected to impact them over the next few years. We provide this information to help public sector entities understand upcoming 
changes and challenges they may face in their industry. Some of these developments may not impact the District directly, but we believe it is important for the 
Board of Trustees to understand what is happening in the sector.  

Public Sector Accounting Standards 
Standard Summary and implications 

Impact of COVID-19  In response to the impact of COVID-19 on public sector entities, PSAB has approved deferral of all upcoming accounting 
standards by one year and will issue non-authoritative guidance on the effects of COVID-19. 

Asset Retirement 
Obligations – The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The effective date was deferred by one year

due to COVID-19.
– The new standard addresses the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of legal obligations associated with

retirement of tangible capital assets in productive use. Retirement costs will be recognized as an integral cost of owning and
operating tangible capital assets. PSAB currently contains no specific guidance in this area.

– The ARO standard will require the public sector entity to record a liability related to future costs of any legal obligations to be
incurred upon retirement of any controlled tangible capital assets (“TCA”). The amount of the initial liability will be added to the
historical cost of the asset and amortized over its useful life.

– As a result of the new standard, the public sector entity will have to:

 consider how the additional liability will impact net debt, as a new liability will be recognized with no corresponding
increase in a financial asset;

 carefully review legal agreements, senior government directives and legislation in relation to all controlled TCA to
determine if any legal obligations exist with respect to asset retirements;

 begin considering the potential effects on the organization as soon as possible to coordinate with resources outside the
finance department to identify AROs and obtain information to estimate the value of potential AROs to avoid unexpected
issues.

Page 291 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 16 

Appendix 3: Current developments and audit trends (continued) 
Standard Summary and implications 

Revenue – The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The effective date was deferred by one year
due to COVID-19.

– The new standard establishes a single framework to categorize revenues to enhance the consistency of revenue recognition
and its measurement.

– The standard notes that in the case of revenues arising from an exchange transaction, a public sector entity must ensure the
recognition of revenue aligns with the satisfaction of related performance obligations.

– The standard notes that unilateral revenues arise when no performance obligations are present, and recognition occurs when
there is authority to record the revenue and an event has happened that gives the public sector entity the right to the revenue.

Employee Future Benefit 
Obligations 

– PSAB has initiated a review of sections PS3250 Retirement Benefits and PS3255 Post-Employment Benefits, Compensated
Absences and Termination Benefits. In July 2020, PSAB approved a revised project plan.

– PSAB intends to use principles from International Public Sector Accounting Standard 39 Employee Benefits as a starting point
to develop the Canadian standard.

– Given the complexity of issues involved and potential implications of any changes that may arise from the review of the existing
guidance, PSAB will implement a multi-release strategy for the new standards. The first standard will provide foundational
guidance. Subsequent standards will provide additional guidance on current and emerging issues.

International Strategy – PSAB has reviewed all proposed options for its international strategy, and in accordance with its due process, approved the
option to adapt International Public Sector Accounting Standards when developing future standards.  PSAB noted that the
decision will apply to all projects beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

– An exposure draft to modify the GAAP hierarchy has been issued with responses due by February 15, 2021.

Purchased Intangibles – In October 2019, PSAB approved a proposal to allow public sector entities to recognize intangibles purchased through an
exchange transaction. Practitioners are expected to use the definition of an asset, the general recognition criteria and the
GAAP hierarchy to account for purchased intangibles.

– PSAB has approved Public Sector Guideline 8 which allows recognition of intangibles purchased through an exchange
transaction. Narrow-scope amendments were made to Section PS 1000 Financial statement concepts to remove prohibition on
recognition of intangibles purchased through exchange transactions and PS 1201 Financial statement presentation to remove
the requirement to disclose that purchased intangibles are not recognized.

– The effective date is April 1, 2023 with early adoption permitted. Application may be retroactive or prospective.

Page 292 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 17 

Appendix 3: Current developments and audit trends (continued) 
Standard Summary and implications 

Public Private Partnerships 
(“P3”) 

– PSAB has proposed new requirements for the recognition, measurement and classification of infrastructure procured through a
public private partnership.   The final standard was approved in December 2020 with an issuance date of April 1, 2021 and an
effective date of April 1, 2023.

– The standard requires recognition of infrastructure by the public sector entity would occur when it controls the purpose and use
of the infrastructure, when it controls access and the price, if any, charged for use, and it controls any significant interest
accumulated in the infrastructure when the P3 ends.

– The standard requires that the public sector entity recognize a liability when it needs to pay cash or non-cash consideration to
the private sector partner for the infrastructure.

– The infrastructure would be valued at cost, with a liability of the same amount if one exists. Cost would be measured by
discounting the expected cash flows by a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the project.

Concepts Underlying 
Financial Performance 

– PSAB is in the process of reviewing the conceptual framework that provides the core concepts and objectives underlying
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

– PSAB has released four exposure drafts for the proposed conceptual framework and proposed revised reporting model, and
their related consequential amendments. Comments on the exposure drafts are due in May 2021.

– PSAB is proposing a revised, ten chapter conceptual framework intended to replace PS 1000 Financial Statement Concepts
and PS 1100 Financial Statement Objectives. The revised conceptual framework would be defined and elaborate on the
characteristics of public sector entities and their financial reporting objectives. Additional information would be provided about
financial statement objectives, qualitative characteristics and elements. General recognition and measurement criteria, and
presentation concepts would be introduced.

– In addition, PSAB is proposing:

 Relocation of the net debt indicator to its own statement and the statement of net financial assets/liabilities, with the
calculation of net debt refined to ensure its original meaning is retained.

 Separating liabilities into financial liabilities and non-financial liabilities.

 Changes to common terminology used in the financial statements, including re-naming accumulated surplus (deficit) to net
assets (liabilities).

 Restructuring the statement of financial position to present non-financial assets before liabilities.

 Removal of the statement of remeasurement gains (losses) with the information instead included on a new statement
called the statement of changes in net assets (liabilities). This new statement would present the changes in each
component of net assets (liabilities).

 A new provision whereby an entity can use an amended budget in certain circumstances.

 Inclusion of disclosures related to risks and uncertainties that could affect the entity’s financial position.

Page 293 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 18 

Appendix 3: Current developments and audit trends (continued) 
Our discussions with you, our audit opinion and what KPMG is seeing in the marketplace - both from an audit and industry perspective - indicate the following 
is specific information that will be of particular interest to you. We would, of course, be happy to further discuss this information with you at your convenience. 

Thought leadership 

Thought leadership Overview Link 

2020 Audit Quality and 
Transparency Report 

Learn about KPMG's ongoing commitment to continuous audit quality improvement. KPMG maintains a system 
of audit quality control that is designed to meet or exceed the requirements of the applicable professional 
standards. In fact, we are continuously reviewing our policies and practices to ensure we’re aligned with all 
regulatory and professional requirements, which if our firm commitment to each other as well as to our clients 
and to the capital markets we serve. 

Link to report 

Put your data to work to gain 
competitive advantage 

There is no "digital economy". The economy is digital and "digits" refer to data. Data is the lifeblood of every 
organization on this planet and organizations that embrace this notion are well positioned to grow as industries 
continue to evolve and disrupt at an ever increasing pace.  

Link to report 

Predictive analytics, it works CEOs recognize the value that predictive analytics delivers to their decision-making process. Link to report 

Creating the workforce of the 
future 

You can’t transform the organization without also transforming the workforce. It may be time to rethink the 
people strategy. 

Link to report 

Accelerate Introducing the new 2019/2020 Accelerate report, a KPMG report and video series offering insight into the key 
issues driving the Board of Trustees agenda, including: 

 Digital disruption of the finance function 

 Digital business brings increased cyber risk 

 Taking the lead on data privacy 

 Boards bracing for climate change 

 Future-proofing your enterprise risk management 

Link to report 

Board Leadership Centre KPMG provides leading insights to help Board members maximize boardroom opportunities. Link to site 

Page 294 of 308



 Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 19 

Appendix 3: Current developments and audit trends (continued) 
COVID-19 pandemic resources 

Resources Summary Links 

Resources for management 
and the Board of Trustees 

Please visit our COVID-19 website for resources regarding the topics below. This site is being updated daily 
based on information being released by federal, provincial and municipal news releases. 
 Business continuity guide 
 Immediate actions to take 
 Medium to long-term actions 
 Tax considerations and a summary of federal and provincial programs 
 Legal considerations 
 Financial reporting and audit considerations 
 Global perspectives 

COVID-19 Alerts (Live 
Link) 

Return to the workplace As all levels of government begin to take steps toward re-opening the country and restarting our economy, 
planning for the return to a physical workplace is quickly becoming a top priority for many organizations. With 
the guidelines for the pandemic continuing to evolve daily, there are many considerations, stages and factors 
employers need to assess in order to properly develop a robust action plan which can ensure the health and 
safety of their workforce. 
We have put together a Return to the Workplace guide to support an organization’s planning efforts in 
preparing to return to physical workplace. Our guide includes a list of considerations, stages and factors that 
can help establish a robust action plan for your organization to safely return to work. The guide is supported 
by a dynamic playbook, which our team has developed to outline a comprehensive list of actions an 
organization can take, based on their unique situation and immediate needs. 

Website link 

Link to guide 

Page 295 of 308



kpmg.ca/audit 

KPMG LLP, an Audit, Tax and Advisory firm (kpmg.ca) and a Canadian limited liability partnership established under the laws of Ontario, is the Canadian 
member firm of KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”). 

KPMG member firms around the world have 174,000 professionals, in 155 countries. 

The independent member firms of the KPMG network are affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss entity. Each KPMG firm is a legally distinct and separate 
entity, and describes itself as such. 

© 2021 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 

KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 

Page 296 of 308



 

 

 

TO:  Board of Education  

FROM: Kim Morris, Secretary-Treasurer 

RE: Report on Purchasing Zero Emissions Buses  

DATE:  June 21, 2021 

Background 
The Greater Victoria School District No. 61 has been relying on an outside contractor to supply regular 
program bus service to students that live within catchment and outside GVSD walk limits. While we 
strive to contract the safest and most cost effective provider, we find ourselves paying for a service that 
can be operated in-house more effectively and efficiently. For 2020-21, the District is under contract and 
supplies regular program bussing to approximately 120 students. 
 
Initiative 
In the 2021-22 Capital Plan, the District submitted a request to the Ministry of Education, and has been 
approved to purchase four school buses. The GVSD is moving forward to provide scheduled in-house 
school bussing using a fleet of new electric school buses. Targeted funding is provided by the Ministry of 
Education, the Ministry of Energy, Mines and Low Carbon Innovation, and Federal grants and loans 
specific to school bus electrification. The buses will be used to transport students daily living within 
catchment and outside the walk limits, as well as field trips which will lower costs to schools. The District 
plans to purchase electric buses that will assist with the Board’s June 2019 commitment to the Climate 
Emergency and lower our greenhouse gas emissions. 
 
Execution 
In order to add four new electric buses to our current fleet of two gasoline buses, the Facilities 
Department has visited many school sites to determine the best location to accommodate the increased 
fleet.  
 
Colquitz Middle School has been identified as the ideal location for reasons listed below:  

• Many of the approved regular program bussing students attend Colquitz Middle School.  
• Colquitz Middle School has the space to accommodate the buses with little to no disruption to 

the school.  
• The infrastructure is located on Interurban Road for electric charging stations.  

 
Currently, the Facilities Grounds Department has a lock up on the southwest side of Colquitz Middle 
School property. As seen on the attached drawings, Appendix 1, the following will occur to make this 
project viable for all parties:  
 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)  
556 Moleskin Road, Victoria, BC V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 Kim Morris - Secretary Treasurer 

Office of the 
Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 297 of 308



 

• The current grounds compound will move 27-32 feet to the east.  
• All the grounds items currently stored on the west side of the compound will move to the east 

side to ensure the buses can safely park within the compound.  
• Instead of a fence between the compound and the pathway, an 8 foot wall will be made using 

QuikBlocks  
• The walking pathway will move 27-32 feet to the east to ensure the safety of students.  
• The electric charging stations will be installed at the far end of the compound on the south end.  
• The buses will enter and leave the compound using the access off of Interurban Road.  

 
The cost of the bus compound at Colquitz Middle School is estimated to be $250,000 and is budgeted 
from Annual Facilities Grant. 
 
Relative to Policy 7122 – Community Involvement in the Process of Building and Site Development, the 
Manager of Capital Planning and Implementation, Marni Vistisen-Harwood along with the Fleet and 
Transportation Manager, Eric Fischer have met with the Principal and Staff of Colquitz Middle School 
and the Principal distributed relative information to neighbours of the school.  There were no 
objections. 

Funding 
 
Funding is available from various sources but not enough to cover the full cost of the electric buses as 
set out below: 
 

 
 
With a remainder to fund of $194,708 for four buses, the Board may wish to cover the delta using one of 
the following methods or a combination of methods: 

1. Self-finance with operating cost savings over 4.2 years; 
2. Surplus appropriation in September 2021 
3. Additional 2021-2022 regular or international enrolment increase revenue in September  
4. Finance the amount over a period of time.   

 
If considering Method 1,  attached is an operating savings analysis over a five year period indicating that 
within 4.2 years, the Board could pay for the delta by dedicating annual savings to capital.  The risks in 
Method 1 are: 

1. operating savings would not contribute to additional or prioritized initiatives until year 5; and  
2. the transaction would involve redirecting local capital already targeted for specific purposes. 

 

 Bus 1 Bus 2 Bus 3 Bus 4 Total
Cost
E-bus Cost 359,500 359,500 359,500 359,500 1,438,000 
Taxes 28,760 28,760 28,760 28,760 115,040 
Total Cost 388,260 388,260 388,260 388,260 1,553,040 

Funding Sources  
CleanBC Funding (33% of total cost) (118,635) (118,635) (118,635) (118,635) (474,540)
Capital Plan Funding from Ministry of Education (178,448) (178,448) (178,448) (178,448) (713,792)
Additional funding specific to e-bus acquisitions from Ministry of Education (30,000) (30,000) (30,000) (30,000) (120,000)
Core CNCP Funding (one time funding per school district) from Ministry of Education (50,000) 0 0 0 (50,000)
Total Funding Available (377,083) (327,083) (327,083) (327,083) (1,358,332)

Remainder to Fund (SD61 or Canada Infrastructure Bank Loan) (11,177) (61,177) (61,177) (61,177) (194,708)

Page 298 of 308



 

If considering Method 2 and 3, there is risk relative to competing interests and priorities for one time 
initiatives, attending to items in the 2021-2022 budget that were not included, increased cost pressures 
on the District that accompany increased enrolment and potential changes to teacher average salary. 
 
If considering Method 4, the Canadian Infrastructure Bank, in partnership with the Association of School 
Transportation Services of BC, has created a credit facility whereby financing is available at a rate of 1% 
over 10 years.  This method would require an operating expense budget of $20,500 per year offset by 
the $44,000 to $48,000 savings per year, thus netting the district $23,500 to $27,500 additional 
discretionary operating funds per year.  Method 4 would require a capital bylaw for borrowing and 
permission from the Ministry, such permission provided in principle to the Secretary-Treasurer by the 
Ministry on June 15, 2021.  Three other school districts in BC are currently pursuing this option. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
WHEREAS: 
The Board is purchasing four electric buses; 
The Board will reduce and/or eliminate the need for bussing contractors once the electric buses are in 
place; 
The Board will recognize $44,000 to $48,000 operating savings per year by using electric buses and 
reducing/eliminating bussing contractors, once the buses are in place; 
The funding to capital cost delta for the four buses is $194,708, 
BE IT RESOLVED 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) finance the 2021-2022 $194,708 
delta utilizating Method 4:  Finance over a period of time with the Canadian Infrastructure Bank and 
Association of School Transportation Services of BC credit facility, as presented; 
AND FURTHER 
That the Secretary-Treasurer be directed to seek permission from the Minister of Education to borrow; 
AND FURTHER 
That the Secretary-Treasurer be directed to bring a capital bylaw for three readings relative to the 
borrowing, to a future Board meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 299 of 308



Capital Costs Year One

Vehicles # of vehicles Capital Cost Total

Type C Electric -  Incl Charging station 4 388,260.00$        1,553,040.00$     1,553,040.00$           

Total Accumulated Funding and Grants-See Information Page 1,358,332.00$           

Total Capital Requirement 194,708.00$              

Operating Costs # of vehicles Cost Year One Year Two Year Three Year Four Year Five

Electricity - Estimate 50% of Fuel Costs 4 $2,187.00 8,748.00$             8,966.70$              9,190.87$                   9,420.64$               9,656.16$              

Maintenance - Estimate 25% of Conventional Costs 4 $837.00 3,348.00$             3,431.70$              3,517.49$                   3,605.43$               3,695.57$              

Insurance and Licensing 4 $1,184.00 4,736.00$             4,854.40$              4,975.760$                 5,100.15$               5,227.658$           

Staffing 155,102.98$        158,205.04$          162,160.16$               166,214.17$           170,369.520$       

Annual and Ongoing Training 20,000.00$          20,500.00$            21,012.50$                 21,537.81$             22,076.26$           

Software - Traversa 10,000.00$          10,250.00$            10,506.25$                 10,768.91$             11,038.13$           

Miscellaneous (GPS/2 Way Radios/Cellphones) 1,052.00$             1,078.30$              1,105.26$                   1,132.89$               1,161.21$              

Total 202,986.98$        207,286.14$         212,468.29$              217,780.00$           223,224.50$         

Year One Year Two Year Three Year Four Year Five Five Year Total

Projected Cost 202,986.98$        207,286.14$        212,468.29$         217,780.00$              223,224.50$           1,063,745.89$      

Current Contractor 

Cost 204,760.00$        209,879.00$        215,125.98$         220,504.12$              226,016.727$         1,076,285.83$      

Current Operational 

Costs 42,005.38$          43,055.51$          44,131.90$           45,235.20$                46,366.08$             220,794.06$         

Projected Savings 43,778.40$          45,648.37$          46,789.58$           47,959.32$                49,158.31$             233,333.99$         

Cumulative 43,778.40$          89,426.77$          136,216.36$         184,175.68$              233,333.99$           

Assumptions

Cost of electric bus is current IC pricing including fees and taxes

Fuel costs calculated using SD63 information averaged over entire school bus fleet  $3888/bus/year

Maintenance rates based on  25% of conventional maintenance costs using SD63 information averaged over entire fleet $5793/bus/year

Insurance is based on 2021 ICBC rates

Annual Inflation Rate of 2.5% assumed

Payroll benefits - 30.4%

Miscellaneous Costs - $35/mth for GPS Monitoring, $27/mth for 2 Way Radio costs

Driver's Salary based on CUPE 947 EA Salary Gride

Salaries based on Four hours driving time/day

Current operational costs include staff, insurance and software

Overall Annual Operating Cost

Page 300 of 308



 

 

Colquitz Middle School Proposed Changes  

Appendix 1  

Page 301 of 308



   

 

CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2021/22-CPSD61-01 
CAPITAL PLAN 2021/22 

 
WHEREAS in accordance with section 142 of the School Act, the Board of Education of School District 

No. 61 (Greater Victoria) (hereinafter called the “Board”) has submitted a capital plan to the Minister of 

Education (hereinafter called the "Minister") and the Minister has approved the capital plan or has 

approved a capital plan with modifications, 

 

NOW THEREFORE in accordance with section 143 of the School Act, the Board has prepared this 

Capital Bylaw and agrees to do the following: 

 

(a) Authorize the Secretary-Treasurer to execute a capital project funding agreement(s) related to the 

capital project(s) contemplated by the capital plan or the capital plan with modifications; 

(b) Upon ministerial approval to proceed, commence the capital project(s) and proceed diligently 

and use its best efforts to complete each capital project substantially as directed by the Minister; 

(c) Observe and comply with any order, regulation, or policy of the Minister as may be applicable to 

the Board or the capital project(s); and, 

(d) Maintain proper books of account, and other information and documents with respect to the 

affairs of the capital project(s), as may be prescribed by the Minister. 

 

NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows: 

 

1. The Capital Bylaw of the Board for the 2021/22 Capital Plan as approved by the Minister, to 

include the supported capital project(s) specified in the letter addressed to the Secretary-

Treasurer and Superintendent, dated June 21, 2021, is hereby adopted. 

 

2. This Capital Bylaw may be cited as School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) Capital Bylaw 

No.2021/22-CPSD61-01. 

 

READ A FIRST TIME THE 21st DAY OF June 2021; 

READ A SECOND TIME THE 21st DAY OF June 2021; 

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED THE 21st DAY OF June 2021. 

 

 

 _________________________________ 

 Board Chair 

  

 

 _________________________________ 

 Secretary-Treasurer 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true and original School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) Capital Bylaw No. 

2021/22-CPSD61-01 adopted by the Board the 21st day of June 2021. 

 

 

 _________________________________ 

 Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 302 of 308



Page 303 of 308



Page 304 of 308



Page 305 of 308



Page 306 of 308



 
The Board of Education 

of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
In-Camera Board Meeting, May 17, 2021 

 
 
 

SECTION 72 REPORT 
 
 
Present: 
Trustees Jordan Watters, Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie 
Hentze, Ryan Painter, Rob Paynter, and Ann Whiteaker 
 
Sanctioned: 
Trustee Diane McNally  
 
Guest: 
Raj Dhasi, Consultant, Turning Point Resolutions 
Andrew Kadler, Koffman, Kalef, LLP 
 
Administration: 
Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy 
Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate Superintendent, Colin Robert, Associate 
Superintendent, Chuck Morris, Director of Facilities Services, Lisa McPhail, Communications and 
Community Engagement Manager and Vicki Hanley, Recorder  
 
The Board of Education discussed the following matters: 
 

• Property 
• Legal 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 307 of 308



 

The Board of Education 
of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

In-Camera Board Meeting, June 10, 2021 

 
 

 

SECTION 72 REPORT 
 
 
Present: 
Trustees Jordan Watters, Chair, Elaine Leonard, Vice-Chair, Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie 
Hentze, Ryan Painter, Rob Paynter, and Ann Whiteaker 
 
Sanctioned: 
Trustee Diane McNally  
 
Administration: 
Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Kim Morris, Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, Deputy 
Superintendent, Harold Caldwell, Associate Superintendent, Colin Robert, Associate 
Superintendent, Chuck Morris, Director of Facilities Services, Katrina Stride, Associate Secretary-
Treasurer, Jim Soles, Associate Director, Facilities Services, and Kelly Gorman, Recorder  
 
The Board of Education discussed the following matters: 
 

 Property 

 Legal 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 308 of 308


	Agenda
	A.3.a Approval of the May 17, 2021 Regular Board Minutes
	A.3.b Approval of the May 25, 2021 Special Board Budget Minutes
	A.3.c Approval of the May 28, 2021 Special Board Minutes
	A.3.d Approval of the June 10, 2021 Special Board Minutes
	A.7.a Jack Meredith, Dogwood, Climate Action 
	B.1 May 28, 2021, Joint Letter - Songhees and Esquimalt Nations 
	B.2 Budget Correspondence - 2021-2022 Budget
	B.3 May 21 2021, GVTA to SD61, Development of a Plan to Address Racism and Colonialism 
	B.4 June 7, 2021, Lisa Helps, Victoria Mayor, Bank Street School Building - Proposed Partnership
	B.5 Climate Emergency Action Plan Correspondence
	C.1 Chair's Report
	D.1.a Draft minutes from the June 7, 2021 meeting - Information only
	D.1.b.a School Police Liaison Officer Ad Hoc Committee - Trustee Duncan
	D.1.b.b New Accessible British Columbia Act - Trustee Painter
	D.2.a Draft minutes from the June 14, 2021 meeting - Information only
	D.2.b.b Working Committee and Consultation on Compost and Waste - Trustee Whiteaker
	D.2.b.c Climate Action Plan - Trustee Duncan
	E.1.a Monthly Report
	E.1.a Monthly Report
	E.1.b 2021-2022 Board of Education and Standing Committee Meeting Dates
	E.2.a Monthly Report
	E.2.b Caledonia Covenant, Right-of-Way, Land Exchange, Property Acquisition and Lease Bylaw 2021
	E.2.c 2022/2023 Five Year Capital Plan
	E.2.d Audit Planning Report 2020-2021
	E.2.d Audit Planning Report 2020-2021
	E.2.e Purchasing Zero Emission Buses 
	E.2.f Capital Bylaw No 2021/22-CPSD61-01
	G.1 Record of In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - May 17, 2020
	G.2 Record of In-Camera Board of Education Meeting - June 10, 2021



